



Preliminary 297-2671-175.05.05

CC MIS Release

5.2



Quick Start Guide Supervisor's Interface

NCRTEL NETWORKS"



CC MIS Getting Started Guide

Quick Start in the Supervisor's Interface

CC MIS Release 5.2 NTP: 297-2671-175.05.05 Status: Preliminary Date: January 2002

NOTICE: Notwithstanding any explicit confidentiality or proprietary markings to the contrary, the information contained in this document has been reviewed and approved for public disclosure by Nortel. However, the access to, use and disclosure of this document and the information contained therein continue to be subject to copyright and other restrictions, conditions and limitations as detailed in the Terms of Use. (http://www.nortel.com/help/legal/index.html)

© 1995 -2002 Nortel Networks Corporation

All rights reserved.

NORTEL NETWORKS CONFIDENTIAL:

The information contained in this document is the property of Nortel Networks (formerly Northern Telecom, Inc.). Except as specifically authorized in writing by Nortel Networks, the holder of this document shall keep the information contained herein confidential and shall protect same in whole or in part from disclosure and dissemination to third parties and use same for evaluation, operation, and maintenance purposes only.

Information is subject to change without notice. Nortel Networks reserves the right to make changes in design or components as progress in engineering and manufacturing may warrant.

DMS, Meridian Call Center MIS, and ACD MAX are trademarks of Nortel Networks. Microsoft Exchange, Windows, Windows NT, Windows 2000, Windows XP and Windows 95 are trademarks of the Microsoft Corporation. Other trademarks, product names, or servicemarks contained in this guide are property of their respective owners.

European Regulatory Compliance and CE Marking:

The equipment is CE marked, identifying compliance with the relevant EU Directives, 89/336/EEC for ElectroMagnetic Compatibility and 73/23/EECfor Safety.

This product is intended for deployment in a light industrial, non-domestic environment and complies with the relevant EMC standards, EN55022 (class A) and EN50082-1. Since this is class A equipment, in a domestic environment this equipment may cause radio interference in which case the user may be required to take adequate measures.

Printed in the United States of America.

Publication History

January 2002 Preliminary version for CC MIS Release 5.2.



Contents

About this Guide	xi
Key features added in Release 4	xiii
Locating an Agent or Position	xiii
Tracking of Dual DN keys	xiii
Report Status / Cancelling Pending Reports	xiii
Interval Configuration	xiv
PC-Attached Wallboards	xiv
Windows Basics	1-1
How to begin	1-1
Key terms	1-2
Mouse cursor	1-2
Screen layout and components	1-3
Description of components	1-3
Using scroll bars	1-4
Viewing pulldown menus	1-5
Selection from menu bar	1-5
Selection from within screen (workspace menu button)	1-5
Cascade menus	1-6

Keyboard accelerators	1-6
Dialog box	1-6
Tool Bar	1-6
Online Help Screens	2-1
Accessing the help function	2-1
Help options	2-1
Help Topics	2-2
Window	2-2
Using Help	2-3
Logging into CC MIS	3-1
Logging in	
Double-click on the CC MIS icon	
Click on Session and select Login option	
Enter supervisor ID and password (as required)	
CC MIS Main window is displayed	3-3
Download New version	3-3
Logging out	
When the system goes down	3-4
Exiting CC MIS	3-4
Defining communications (Communications Setup screen)	
Client Services (Printer, Fax and Filing Setup)	3-6
Services Tab	3-7
Filing Tab	3-7
Printer Tab	3-8
Text Tab	3-8
Graphics Tab	3-9
Customizing Graphical Reports Colors	3-9
Email/Fax Tab	3-10
Wallboard Tab	3-10
Color Customization	3-11
CC MIS Main Functions	4-1
Displays menu	4-1
Reports menu	4-2
Config menu	4-2
Profile menu	4-2
Admin menu	4-3
Networked CC MIS	4-3
Agent Status Display	
Introduction	5-1
Accessing the Agent Status display	5-1
Agent Status display	5-1
Agent Status display field descriptions	5-2
Setting the view and display	5-3
Your default view	5-3
Selecting fonts for the displays	5-3
Controlling the information presented in the display	5-3
Showing elapsed time for agent positions	5-3
Hold Time	5-3

	Contents
ACD Group detail window	
Subgroup detail window	
Miscellaneous display functions	
Selecting colors and fonts for displays	
Saving Preferences	
Monitoring another supervisor	5 5

Miscellaneous display functions5	-5
Selecting colors and fonts for displays5	-5
Saving Preferences	-5
Monitoring another supervisor5.	-5
Agent Detail window	-6
Oueue Statistics Display	<u>i-1</u>
Queue Suussies Disping	-
Introduction6	-1
Accessing the Queue Statistics display6	-1
Changing or controlling the Queue Statistics display6	-2
Setting the view	-2
Your default view6	-3
Controlling the format6	-3
Changing the display format without changing the default6-	-3
Creating your own Queue Statistics display6	-4
Overview of the process6	-4
Step 1: Defining formulas6-	-4
Step 2: Defining quadrants6-	-5
Step 3: Defining screens	-7
Wallhoard Messages 7	/_1
vi uniobul u iviessuges	-1
Introduction	-1
Accessing the message screen7-	-1
Wallboard Message Definition screen fields7-	-2
Defining a wallboard message7	-4
Wallboard Display Definitions7-	-5
Wallboard Display Definition screen fields7	-5
Defining a wallboard display7	-7
Sending a message to the wallboard7	-8
	-8
	-8
Clearing a wallboard7	-9
Alarms (SNMP)8	-1
Introduction8	-1
Description8	-2
Tool bar8	-2
Status bar8	-2
Form template	-3
SNMP Community Setup8	-5
SNMP MIB Transfer8	-5
Reports9)-1
•	
Introduction	-1
Accessing the reporting functions9	-1
Generating a report9.	-1
Identifying the report format	-2
Standard formats	-2
Personal formats	-2
Public formats	-2

Contents

Identifying the format of the report	9-2
Identify the type of report	9-3
Generating a report	9-3
Creating a printed report	
Creating a data export report	9-3
Printing reports	
Viewing reports at your terminal	
Requesting the report	
Scheduling a report for printing	
Defining report parameters	
Fields in the Report Parameter Definition screen	
Interval Configuration	9-7
Report Status	
Cancelling Pending Reports	
Cancelling Report Generation	9-8
Creating a report definition	9-9
Creating ad-hoc reports	
Determining report status	9-10
Viewing a report at your deskton	9-10
Viewing the report parameters	9-10
Cenerating a data export report	
Viewing another supervisor's report	0 11
Generating an Event L og report	0 12
Denerating an Event Log report	
Customicing Benorts	
Customizing Reports	
Field descriptions	
Field descriptions	
Graphic formats	
Field descriptions	
Printing custom reports	
Spectrums	
Listing of standard report formats	
Configuration Control	10-1
Introduction	
Networked CC MIS	
Accessing configuration control functions	
Ad hoc Load Management screens	
Screen functionality	
Insert Dialog Box	
Changing agent position assignments	
Show Changes	
Position Assignments screen fields	
Moving an active position to a new group	
Changing agent set parameters	
Agent Set Parameters screen fields	10-5
Changing queue size narameters of an ACD group	
Queue Size screen fields	10-7
Changing time overflow narameters of an ACD grown	10-7 1 0 -0
Time Overflow screen fields	10-9 10_0
Changing the overflow targets for an ACD group	10-9 10_11
Overflow Targets screen fields	10 11
Changing recorded approximates parameters ACD group	۲0-۱۱ ۱۸ ۱۶
Changing recorded announcements parameters - ACD group	

Contents

Recorded Announcements screen fields	
Changing special routing parameters for an ACD group	10-14
Special Routing option screen fields	
Changing network parameters for an ACD group	
Network Parameters option screen fields	
Changing ACD-DN assignments and priorities	
ACD-DNs screen fields	
Changing network targets	
Network Targets option screen fields	
Using Configuration Control efficiently	
Viewing Configuration Control database tables	
Configuration Control database tables	





About this Guide

This is the Getting Started Guide for CC MIS (NTP 297-2671-175). This guide should be used in conjunction with other NTPs issued in support of CC MIS.

audience and scope

This guide is intended to be used by supervisors who are new to the CC MIS product. It provides these users with the basic steps and information needed to gain quick access to all of the major functions available to a supervisor terminal.

This guide is intended to provide a quick overview of the CC MIS Supervisor's interface. For a more detailed explanation of CC MIS functions, refer to the CC MIS Online Help.

This guide does not cover the System Administration functions which are accessed using the Admin command. Information concerning the use of these functions is presented in the CC MIS Online Help which is accessed from any window in the CC MIS product.



If you are upgrading from a prior release of CC MIS (for example 3.2 to 5.1), the following list of features were added to the Supervisor Interface in CC MIS Release 4.0:

- *Networked CC MIS Real-Time Statistics* Changes to load management and realtime statistics and screens to allow for the consolidated viewing of data from all partitions in a CC MIS network. This enhancement also allows network supervisors to perform the same load management functions as local supervisors. The Configuration Control screens display a Node field and the Insert windows allow for selection of a node, then the insertion of groups on that node.
- *Networked CC MIS Historical Statistics* Reporting capability has been enhanced to allow the generation of reports that contain data from multiple CC MIS nodes. This network enhancement is available to supervisors who are logged into a Network Access Partition (NAP).



- *Windows completion* All remaining emulation mode windows have been converted to a true Windows interface.
- *Increased Capacities* The following capacities have been increased: ACD groups to 512, Supplementary DNs to 8704, Number of Agents to 5000, and number of agent IDs to 9999.
- *Agent location by Login ID* Provides a Find command in the agent status display to locate an agent or position in the display.
- *Walkaway Code Treatment* A new field was added to the Walkaway Code Definition window that allows you to specify if a walkaway code is to be pegged and reported as not ready or walkaway time.
- *Multiple DN key support* CC MIS now correctly reports on positions with up to 2 simultaneous secondary DN calls active.
- *Additional Shift and 24 hr statistics* Several new Shift and 24 hr statistics were added to the CC MIS product. The following new statistics are for both Shift and 24hr:
 - MAX TOF DELAY
 - MAX ANS DELAY
 - MAX ABD DELAY
 - TOT TOF DELAY
- *Enhanced Wallboard support* The wallboard interface has been enhanced to support multi-line messages, multi-color characters, and visual and audible alarms. These enhancements can be used on the new Spectrum Wallboards. Three wallboard models supported in Release 4.0 are: Nortel (Spectrum), Daktronics, and generic.
- *Walkaway Statistics by agent* The walkaway statistic has been enhanced to allow storage of walkaway statistics by agent or by ACD group. This enhancement also affects Walkaway reporting by allowing you to specify an agent or agent(s) to be included in the Walkaway report.
- *Report Services* The Reporting feature in CC MIS has been enhanced to allow tabular reports to be sent to electronic mail addresses, or faxed. These enhanced options are in addition to printing to a file, or directing the report to a printer. (Note: The e-mail and fax capabilities require Microsoft Exchange™.) A Report Status Logs window was added to allow you to view the status all requested reports.
- *Printing of Graphic Reports* Graphic reports can only be printed to PC-attached printers.
- *Configurable Intervals* Flexible intervals can be defined in the Maintenance Interface in intervals of 5, 10, 15, 30, and 60 minutes or turned off. Interval settings can be viewed in the Supervisor Interface from the Reports menu on the Report Parameters window.
- *Color Customization* On systems that support more than 256 colors, the Color Maps in the Color Selection dialogs for both printers and displays will allow customization of the colors. The Color dialog is accessed by clicking on the Customize button that will be displayed on the Color Selection window.

The following interface has been removed in Release 4.0:

• Text Interface - The Text interface is no longer supported.



Key features added in Release 4

Below are some key features found in the Supervisor's Interface that were added in Release 4.0 and are present in CC MIS Release 5.0.

Locating an Agent or Position

Starting in Release 4, you can locate and agent or position using the View / Find command on from the Agent Status window. The Find Agent-Position dialog is shown below.

		L	Find
 Agent 	ID		Cancel
C Positio	on ID		Help
Results			
Position	Subaroup	ACD Group	

Tracking of Dual DN keys

The status of two DN keys can be viewed. This option is activated using the Preferences/Dual DN Status option. When activated, a second timer for the second DN is displayed.

ACD GROUP	POSN	STATUS		DURATION	LOGIN
Customer Service	1178	WAITING		01:39	11:14:21 PM
	1179	acdh /dnih	/DNO	<u>02:08</u> / <u>00:27</u> /00:22	11:14:21 PM

Report Status / Cancelling Pending Reports

After a report is requested, the status of the report can be viewed or the pending report cancelled using the Report status logs window. This window is accessed from the Reports menu on the CC MIS Main window.

Report Status Logs File Select View F	lelp	al		_ [] ×
		<u>{</u>		
Request Time	Status	Туре	Report Name	Destina
03/24/97 9:57:36 AM	Complete	Print	Jiulie_walk	DeskJe
03/24/97 9:49:53 AM	Complete	Print	Preview Report	DeskJe
03/24/97 9:35:43 AM	Complete	Print	Preview Report	DeskJe
03/21/97 7:15:37 PM	Generating	Print	TABULAR FORMAT DATABASE REPORT	HP Las
03/21/97 7:15:22 PM	Complete	Print	INTERVAL CONFIGURATION DATABASE REPORT	HP Las
03/21/97 3:42:26 PM	Complete	Print	ACD Group by Line of Business Code Report	DeskJe
03/21/97 3:32:20 PM	Complete	Print	INTERVAL CONFIGURATION DATABASE REPORT	HP Las
03/21/97 3:27:48 PM	Complete	Print	INTERVAL CONFIGURATION DATABASE REPORT	HP Las
Logs: 8 Selected:	0			

Interval Configuration

Intervals for each hour of the day are configured in the Maintenance Interface. The intervals used by your partition can be viewed while in the Report Parameters Definition window by selecting the Reports / Intervals command. The Interval Configuration dialog is displayed. Intervals that are allowed in Release 4.0 are: 5, 10, 15, 30, and 60 minutes.

Interval Configurati	on 🛛 🗙
0:00 - 30	12:00 - 30
1:00 - 30	13:00 - 30
2:00 - 30	14:00 - 30
3:00 - 30	15:00 - 30
4:00 - 30	16:00 - 30
5:00 - 30	17:00 - 30
6:00 - 30	18:00 - 30
7:00 - 30	19:00 - 30
8:00 - 30	20:00 - 30
9:00 - 30	21:00 - 30
10:00 - 30	22:00 - 30
11:00 - 30	23:00 - 30
	ОК

PC-Attached Wallboards

Wallboards can now be attached to the Supervisor's PC. Wallboards supported in Release 4 include: Nortel, Daktronics, and generic.

Note: Only Nortel wallboards can be connected as PC-attached wallboards.

Use the Session / Setup / Wallboards command to access the Wallboard Setup window.

Wallboar	d Setup	? ×
Port	Wallboards	
Selec attacł COM COM	t the <u>p</u> ort on this computer to which the wallboard(s) are ed: e) 1 2	
	OK Cancel Help	

new features in release 5.0

The following changes and enhancements were added to CC MIS in Release 5.0. (Re-enqueue features require BCS43).

- Enhanced handling of ACD Re-Enqueued Calls adding the following new statistics to the formulas list in the Report Formula Definition window. These will appear in the appropriate statistics group formulas list:
 - Abd After RENQ
 - Num RENQ Routed
 - RENQ Via Force Out
 - RENQ Via Not Ready

Eile Edit St	nulas atistics <u>H</u> elp				<u>- </u>
	<u>XBE</u> P D	estination ACD-GRP Statis	tics 💌 🦻		
<u>⊤</u> itle					
<u>G</u> raph Title					
C <u>o</u> lumn Title		<u>D</u> efault Display Format <u>M</u> inimum Width	Numeric	Divide by <u>Z</u> ero Treatment © Divide by One © Force To Zero	
<u>C</u> alculation					
Operators	St <u>a</u> tistics				
+ -	Abd After RENQ Abd Category 1	Abd Category 4 Abd Category 5	Abd Category 9 ACD Talk Time	Ans Category 10 Ans Category 2	1A 1A
* /	Abd Category 10	Abd Category 6	Active Time	Ans Category 3	Ar
MIN MAX ()	Abd Category 2 Abd Category 3	Abd Category 7 Abd Category 8	All Posns Busy Time Ans Category 1	Ans Category 4 Ans Category 5	Ar Av

- RENQ fields were added to the Configuration Control Special Routing window and to the Configuration Control Change Orders / Special Routing window. These fields are described below:
 - *Re-Enqueue Time* The maximum amount of time in seconds a re-enqueued call remains queued before being re-routed to the re-enqueue route (Range: 0 -1800).
 - *Re-Enqueue Route* This is the re-enqueue route that consists of table (Values: "OFRT", "IBNRTE") and index (Range: 0 1023).
 - *Re-Enqueue Audio Table* Audio group used to provide re-enqueue announcement to callers prior to re-routing the call to the re-enqueue route (Range: 1 512).
- The BCS 43 switch protocol version is now supported and is required to use the above listed features.



- The Num ACD Hold Acts statistic was added to the Report Formula Definition window and is displayed in the formulas list under the appropriate statistics group.
- Access to additional OFRT tables (OFR2, OFR3, and OFR4) using the Config/View/ OFRT Tables sub-menu.

關CC MIS - Nortel - Jay			_ []	×
<u>Session</u> <u>D</u> isplays <u>R</u> eports	<u>C</u> onfig <u>P</u> rofile	Admin	<u>H</u> elp	
Connection Status	Positions <u>G</u> roups ACD-DNs <u>N</u> etworking <u>C</u> hange Order	• s	Config Status None	
	⊻iew		Audio Table <u>QFRT Tables</u> JBNRTE Tables Audio Lists Boute Lists Transaction Log Execution Queue	OFR <u>1</u> OFR <u>2</u> OFR <u>3</u> OFR <u>4</u>

• Access to additional IBNRTE tables (IBNRT2, IBNRT3, and IBNRT4) using the Config/View/IBNRTE Tables sub-menu.

CC MIS - Nortel - Jay Session Displays Reports	<u>Config</u> Profile	Admin	 <u>H</u> elp	×
Connection Status	<u>P</u> ositions <u>G</u> roups <u>A</u> CD-DNs <u>N</u> etworking	•	Config Status None	
08:14:06	<u>C</u> hange Order	's		
	⊻iew	•	<u>A</u> udio Table <u>O</u> FRT Tables	
			IBNRTE Tables 🔹 🕨	IBNRT <u>E</u>
			Au <u>d</u> io Lists <u>R</u> oute Lists	IBNRT <u>2</u> IBNRT <u>3</u> IBNRT <u>4</u>
			<u>T</u> ransaction Log Execution <u>Q</u> ueue	

- The capability of changing route entries to the new tables was added to the Groups/ Time Overflow, Groups/Overflow Targets, and Groups/Special Routing windows in Configuration Control.
- Entries for the new IBNRTE and OFRT tables can be included in the System Report/ Configuration Report.
- Keycodes are now used to activate optional system features. A prompt to enter a keycode will appear whenever a system is upgraded from 3.x or 4.x to 5.x or 5.x is installed on a new system.
- Addition of the DHCP function which allows CC MIS to be connected to a LAN without the requirement of entering an IP Address. This feature makes use of the Session / Setup / Communications command. This screen allows you to define sev-



About this Guide

Release 5.2

eral connection profiles and allows you to start a new session of CC MIS with the profile of your choice. (Multiple sessions connected to different partitions are permitted). When defining a profile, the connection type is selected, the Host IP address is specified, and the partition name and password are entered.

	CC MIS Communications Setup	x
	Profile Name Jays	▼ <u>N</u> ew <u>D</u> elete
CC MIS allows LAN connections to the specified host and partition without the IP address of the Supervisor's machine being defined.	Connection Type LAN to Partition Hostname/Address 47.0.16.161 Partition Steve Password *****	n 🔽 I
then the associated fields displayed for the connection selected.	OK Cancel	<u>A</u> pply Help
CC MIS Communications Setup		×
Profile Name My Profile Connection Type LAN to Partition Hostname/Address LAN to Host Partition Serial Password Sav	<u>New</u> <u>Delete</u> e Password	Available connections can be selected from the drop-down menu
OK Cancel A	pply Help	_

• CC MIS Main window was enhanced to display defined clients.

關 CC MIS - Training 2 - ja		
<u>Session</u> <u>D</u> isplays <u>R</u> eports	<u>C</u> onfig <u>P</u> rofile <u>A</u> dmin	<u>H</u> elp
Connection Status	Report Status	Config Status None
11:11:46 AM 🛛 😭 🔚 🖂 🛙	Б	
Defined Clients		



• Agent Trace option was added to the Admin / Agent Definition screen.

	Agent Definition	_ 🗆 ×
	<u>File E</u> dit <u>O</u> ptions <u>H</u> elp	
	x 🗿 x BB 🗠 🔺 🖓 🛛	} ?
	Agent ID 1000	Modify
	Agent Name Steve Crossley	
	Employee ID	
	<u>C</u> omment	
	Agent Irace Yes 💌	
	APR Subgroup 1100 - 555-011-0000	Ena <u>b</u> led Yes 💌
A gent Trace field		
Agent Hace held	Agent ID Agent Name Employee ID	<u> </u>
	1022 Noah Zark	
	1023 Les Moore	
	1024 Luke Warm 1025 App Toppo	-
		<u> </u>
	Records: 100/9999 Selected: 1	1

• Client Management was added to the Admin menu.

		41S - Training 2 - j	ayr				х
	Session	<u>D</u> isplays <u>R</u> eports	<u>C</u> onfig	<u>P</u> rofile	<u>A</u> dmin	<u>H</u> elp	
Eile View Help Image: Imag	Last Used 06/05/00 5.03.05 PM 04/17/00 10:37:32 AM 06/24/00 7:17:16 PM 06/05/00 6:33:05 AM 05/19/00 11:08:31 AM 06/21/00 1:59.09 PM 06/21/00 1:59.09 PM	Selec Client displa	ting the Managements Managements Managements	ent	<u>Priv</u> Sog <u>S</u> up <u>D</u> ef Tim Ihr ACI ACI <u>A</u> ge <u>W</u> a Line So <u>t</u>	<u>п</u> ерр vilege Levels gpes ault Colors e <u>F</u> rames esholds D <u>G</u> roups D-D <u>N</u> s phs ents kaway Codes e-Of- <u>B</u> usiness Codes gedules	•
Coveyduc Computer of Toney	06/19/00 11:38:01 PM 06/19/00 11:36:02 AM 06/21/00 11:32:50 PM				List <u>C</u> us	s tomer Options	
Clients: 9 Selected:	0	li			Lan	nt <u>M</u> anagement Ig <u>u</u> age Options	



• Enhancements were made to the CC MIS Client Services tab window (Session / Setup / Client Services). Selecting the clients under the Services tab causes the clients to be displayed on the CC MIS Main window.

CC MIS Client Services	Setup	? X			
📑 Text	🖸 Graphics	📧 Wallboards			
🐉 Services	🔚 Filing	Printer			
These settings configur	e various client services int	o the CC MIS system.			
Select the client service CC MIS can save CC MIS can print CC MIS can <u>E</u> -ma CC MIS can send	Select the client services you wish to allow: CC MIS can save text reports as files on this computer CC MIS can grint reports from this computer CC MIS can E-mail and/or Fax reports from this computer CC MIS can send messages to wallboards connected to this computer				
Provide the name by which CC MIS should refer to this computer:					
	OK	Cancel Help			

• Wallboard "Quick Messages" can now be sent from the Wallboard Message Definition and Wallboard Run Table windows.

🚟 Wallboard Message Definition		
<u>F</u> ile <u>E</u> dit <u>H</u> elp		
	- @ ₩allboard Run Table	
Te <u>x</u> t	<u>File</u> Options <u>H</u> elp	
Color ABC (Auto) V Style Stand		
Display Always	Display Diagnostic - Host Errors	▼ Update
	Quick Message Time: <t></t>	•
	Multi-board Yes	
For <u>m</u> ula 🤐 (None)		
Format Vidth	Wallboard Currient Display Steve Steve Diagnostic - Host Errors)	Multi-board Yes
Ihreshold (None)	Wallboard 🕮 (Reset/Clear)	Yes
Warning Zone 0		
Audible Alarm Never	Wallboards: 2 Selected: 1	1.
	'	
ACD Group Position	: Message Presentation Mode Update Rate	
(All Groups) Fill	(Auto) II (secs) Quick Message fields	
Send Quick Message Clear	Quick Messages	



new features in release 5.1

The following changes and enhancements were added to the CC MIS Supervisor Interface in Release 5.1.

• A new Subgroup Detail screen was added to Agent Status. This screen is displayed from the Agent Status screen by right clicking on a subgroup in the Navigator window..

🚮 Subgroup	Detail - 0015		_ 🗆 ×
STATUS	POSITIONS	STATUS	POSITIONS
ACD	0	DN IN	0
ACD HOLD	0	DNI HOLD	0
NOT RDY	0	DN OUT	0
VARWRAP	0	DNO HOLD	0
WALK	0		
WAITING	3		
FORCED	0		
SPARE	0		
Total	3	Total	0

- A new search feature was added that allows the finding of an agent by name or ID. (A complete name must be used.) This feature is implemented on the Find dialog.
- The Wallboard Run Table was modified. The new screen is shown below.

🕅 Wallboard	Run Table
File Options	Help
≜ ₹ ?]
<u>D</u> is	play 🔀 Call Stats 2
<u>Q</u> uick Mess	age (None)
Wallboard	Current Display
Sales 2	Research Call Stats 2
I/F to scraper	Reset/Clear)
Steve	(Reset/Clear)
W95_W8	(Diagnostic - Identification)
L_IP	200 Call Stats
Wallboards:	5 Selected: 1

• A Drag and Drop load management was added to Agent Status. This allows you to quickly reposition agents to different subgroups in the Navigator pane. This feature is on the Agent Status screen. (Note: Must have Position Reassignment privileges to use this feature.)



- A new feature was added that allows reports to span across midnight (for both interval and shift). This option is entered using the Shift Definition screen. The Shift Definition screen allows shifts to be specified across midnight and the Report Definition screen allows interval and shift ranges to be specified which span midnight.
- A DN masking option was added to allow masking of DN in Real-time and reports. This is entered in the Customer Options screen.
- An Agent List feature was added to allow supervisors to create lists of Agents for use in Reports. This feature is entered on the List Definition screen.
- The Navigator Pane was added to the Agent Status screen. The new Agent Status screen with the Navigator Pane is shown below.

Agent Status	- Global				- 0 >
Eile ⊻iew Pref	erences <u>M</u> onitor	Help			
	(None		1		
⊕- Group 11	ACD GROUP	POSN STATUS	AGENT NAME	POSN STATUS	AGENT NAME
Group 12 Group 13 Group 14 Group 15 Group 16 Group 17 Group 18	Group 11 Group 12	1100 ACD 1102 WAITING 1104 ACD 1106 WAITING 1108 VARWRAP 1110 WAITING 1112 WAITING 1114 WAITING	Toney Lilly **** 1031 **** 1003 **** 1074 **** 1027 **** 1011 Steve Crossley **** 1069	1101 WALK 098 1103 ACD 1105 ACD 1107 WALK 098 1109 ACD 1111 WAITING 1113 ACD 1114 WAITING 1115 WAITING	•••• 1082 •••• 1014 •••• 1099 •••• 1077 •••• 1006 •••• 1067 •••• 1058 •••• 1058
⊡ - Group 19 ⊡ - Group 20	Group 13	1116 WAITING 1118 WALK 098 1120 WAITING 1122 WAITING 1124 WAITING	**** 1054 **** 1046 **** 1064 **** 1090 **** 1053	1117 ACD 1119 ACD 1121 WAITING 1123 WAITING 1125 WAITING	**** 1072 **** 1093 Julie Strain **** 1087 **** 1017
	Group 14	1126 VARWRAP 1128 WAITING 1130 ACD 1132 WAITING 1134 ACDH /DNO	**** 1056 **** 1012 **** 1037 **** 1085 _**** 1025	1127 ACD 1129 VARWRAP 1131 WAITING 1133 WAITING 1135 ACD	**** 1088 **** 1049 Toni Abella **** 1029 **** 1095
	Group 15	1136 ACD 1138 WAITING 1140 ACD 1142 ACD 1144 SPARE	**** 1075 **** 1062 **** 1060 **** 1016	1137 WAITING 1139 ACD 1141 WAITING 1143 ACD 1145 WAITING	**** 1044 **** 1041 **** 1071 **** 1050 **** 1024
10 Groups	100 Positions	2 Spares			

Navigator Pane

• An enhancement was made to the Agent screens that allows the supervisor to Hide Spare positions - (that is, choose whether or not spare positions are displayed). This option is selected from Preferences menu of the Agent Status screen.



• LAN wallboard support was added to allow the use of wallboard connected to the LAN (no terminal server required). The supervisor privilege level must include both the Wallboards and the Client Management privilege options. The feature is implemented on the Wallboard Management screen that is displayed when the Wallboard Management option is selected from the Displays menu on the CC MIS Main window.

Wallboard Management	
Current Wallboards - Host Attached Wallboards - LAN Attached Wallboards - PC Attached Wallboards	Wallboard Configuration IP Address Type Nortel Networks Name
Configured Wallboard Chains Maximum Host LAN PC 5 0 0 0	Address Multi-board Check if more than one wallboard is configured to respond to this Add Delete





The following changes and enhancements were added to the CC MIS Supervisor Interface in Release 5.2.

• Agent data access control to allow or not allow supervisors to access detail information for agents can be controlled through two new data access options in Privilege Level Definition: Agent Identity and Agent Performance. These access options affect access to agent information by supervisors through Agent Status, reports, and configuration control. Supervisors can be limited from accessing agent names or ids by disabling the Agent Identify option or agent performance information (real time or historical) by disabling the Agent Performance option.





• The list definition capability has been extended to allow the creation of lists of walkaway codes, line of business (LOB) codes, and subgroups. Additionally, agent lists can be defined on a Network Access Partition (NAP). The List Definition window has been improved to be more user friendly.

				record .		
	Agents	J DIG BIX		8		
	ACD Groups					
T	ACD-DNs			Unlisted Agent		
111	Agents					
vailable List	Line-of-business Co	odes				Lucz I
efinition	Positions			<u>Available</u> Agents	: No	ode MET 🔄
unos	Subgroups	t Name		Agent ID	Agent Name	
ypes	I ME 1-11034	Mark Denison	< Add	MET-1000	Monica Zobrist	
	MET-1087	Mike Sandler		MET-1001	Tony Lopez	
	MET-1088	Kevin Marsh	Bemove>	MET-1002	Jeff Mann	
	MET-1096	Fred Lauten	<u></u>	MET-1003	Jovce Jones	
	MET-1089	Kelly Quinlan	Movellin	MET-1004	Veronica Larkin	
	MET-1090	Steve Starklev		MET-1005	Richard Matthews	
	MET-1091	Paul Hamlin	Move Down	1 MET-1006	Virginia Wilson	
	MET-1092	Eunice Reardin	MOVE DOWN	MET-1007	Gail Yancy	
	MET-1093	Bruce Beardmore		MET-1008	Brian Fox	
	MET-1094	William Tucker		MET-1009	Kent Baker	
	MET-1095	Polly Moore		MET-1010	Byron Fesler	
	MET-1097	Abby Lavoie		MET-1011	Phyllis James	
	MET-1098	Scott Peterson		MET-1012	Alan Robbins	
	MET-1099	Lee Sellers		MET-1013	Dwight Lee	
				MET-1014	Laura Ramsey	
				•		• • •

• The ability to control whether or not the report will be generated in list order has been added by displaying check boxes when lists are specified in Report Parameter Definition.

File Edit English C Name Sample Report Use as title Format Tabular See Agent Report w/o Agent Key Page Breaks
Name Sample Report Format Tabular Sample Report w/o Agent Key Page Breaks
Name Sample Report Format Tabular Image: Sample Report w/o Agent Key Image: Sample Report w/o Agent Key
Format Tabular Report w/o Agent Key Page Breaks
Tabular Report w/o Agent Key Page Breaks
Content Style Printed Report - Data and Totals 🔄 Language English 🛫 M Summary Info
Output Io
Time Frame Interval 🔹 🗖 Logical Groups 🖳 (Screen)
Group by Agent Interval Lengths
and by (None)
Data Calastina
Interval (Bange) V 20:0021:30
Day [Previous] List order check boxes
Dst ACD Group Test Groups V Use list order for sorting
Subgroup (All)
Agent List I Use list order for sorting
Supervisor Scope 5004 - Mike Rambo

- The capability to create "data only" reports has been added. This option creates reports with no total lines and complements the previously available capability to create a "totals only" report.
- The ability to define agents via a Network Access Partition (NAP) is now available.



This capability allows a NAP supervisor to manage the agent definitions which reside on each of the associated local partitions. In order to access this option, the supervisor's associated priviledge definition may need to be modified to allow access to this feature. Changes may also be required to enable this capability in Master Priviledge Definition accessed through the maintenance interface.



Windows Basics

1

Windows Basics

Introduction

This chapter provides information on using the mouse, windows, and menus when running the CC MIS windows interface.



How to begin

If you are new to using the Windows interface, you need to become familiar with this environment. You should proceed through each section in this chapter. You should also complete the Windows tutorial which is accessed from the Help menu on the Start button in Windows 95/98/NT/2000/XP.

If you have used the Windows interface and are already familiar with pulldown menus and mouse operations, you can skip this chapter.

In Windows, command options are selected from pulldown menus. Screens can be sized and multiple screens can be displayed at the same time. A mouse can be used (instead of the keyboard) to select fields and menu items.

The topics mentioned above are discussed in the following paragraphs.

Using the mouse

The mouse is a tool that is used to select menu options and fields on the screen. In essence, the mouse allows you to simply point and click to make a selection. The mouse illustrated in the figure below is a three button mouse.

The names of the buttons are: left, middle, and right. The mouse button designations are: left = MB1, middle = MB2, and right = MB3. Most of the steps in this guide refer to the mouse designations (for example, *click MB1 on the...*).





Key terms

Procedures in this guide are presented in the form of steps. Within these steps you may be instructed to double-click MB1 or press MB1 and drag the mouse.

When using a mouse you will need to know the terms listed below:

Pressing - Pushing and holding down a mouse button

Clicking - Quickly pressing and releasing the mouse button

Dragging - Pressing a mouse button while moving the mouse

Moving - Moving the mouse without pressing a button

Releasing - Letting go of the mouse button

Double-Clicking - Quickly pressing and releasing the mouse button twice

A Windows term you need to know is:

Focus - The area or window on the display that is active to input

Mouse cursor

The mouse has a cursor (pointer) that indicates its position on the screen. This mouse cursor is displayed in the shape of an arrow (for example, \frown). When the mouse is moved, the mouse cursor moves in the same direction across the screen.

Steps Selecting a field with the mouse

To select a field using the mouse:

- 1. Move the mouse cursor to the field to be selected.
- 2. With the cursor position over the desired field, click MB1.
- 3. The cursor is now located within the selected field.

Screen layout and components

Screens in the Windows interface may contain a title bar, menu bar, window menu button, help button, maximize and minimize buttons, and workspace. A typical CC MIS screen layout and components are shown below.



Description of components

The following descriptions refer to the components identified in Figure 1-2.

- Title Bar Contains the title of the window. Click MB1 in this area of the screen to bring this window to the front (move in focus).
- Menu Bar Contains the menu buttons (names) for this window. Click MB1 on a menu button to view the associated pulldown menu and options. (Note: Not all screens have menus.)



Help -	Click MB1 on the Help menu button to view Help information.
Window men	u - This menu is used to effect the screen properties (such as size) and for moving the screen. This menu is also known as the Control menu.
Minimize - Maximize -	Click on this button to iconify the window. Click on this button to increase the size of the screen to fill the entire display area.
Workspace -	The area where the data is displayed and inputs are made.

Using scroll bars

Scroll bars allow you to view data that may be hidden due to the limitations of a screen size. This happens when the contents of the screen are larger than the screen itself. When this occurs, scroll bars appear on the display to allow you to gain access to the hidden information.

By pressing MB1 on the arrow on top of the scroll bar, the contents of the screen move downward until the first line or portion of the screen is displayed. (Clicking, instead of pressing, the mouse causes the information to move one step.)

Pressing MB1 on the bottom arrow causes the data in the Workspace of the screen to move upwards, revealing hidden data.

The components of a scroll bar are shown in below.



Scroll bars



Viewing pulldown

menus

Viewing pulldown menus

Commands and options are selected from pulldown menus. These menus are displayed by clicking MB1 on the associated menu button.

Selection from menu bar

The menu bar contains menu titles. When present, the selection of a menu title causes an associated pulldown menu to appear. The pulldown menu contains commands and available options.

The menu bar, menu titles, and pulldown menu are shown below.



Selection from within screen (workspace menu button)

Some of the Configuration Control windows in CC MIS have menu buttons located within the workspace of the screen. Selecting the menu title results in an associated pulldown menu being displayed. This type of pulldown usually contains valid entries or ranges for a particular field.

The workspace menu button and pulldown menu are shown below.

	🔀 Configuration Control - Cha	nge Orders			
	<u>File Edit Preferences ⊻iew</u>	<u>H</u> elp			
Viewing workspace	Change Order Name		Configuration Area		
pulldown menus			Positions 🔽 🗖		Click MB1 on the Menu
			- Positions		button
	This is a read only key field; key	= Position ID. If any Pi	Agent Set	are defi	Highlight an
	they are selectable from the men	u accessed via the "Ir	ns Queue Sizes m	ain "Ed	option on the
	<i>,</i>		Time Overflow		menu
			Overflow Targets		
			Announcements		
			Special Routing	Curro	
	Position	Subaroun	Network Params	Curren	
		Candloab	ACD-DNs		
			Network Targets		



Cascade menus

Some menu items have an right arrow next to the option name. This indicates that selection of this option will result in a second (cascade) menu being displayed. An example of a cascade menu is shown below.



Cascade menus

Keyboard accelerators

Some menu items have accelerators next to the option name. Accelerators are key sequences that can be entered from the keyboard to execute that option or command. In CC MIS, most keyboard accelerators are the underlined letters (for example, on the <u>A</u>dmin button, the accelerator is <u>A</u>).

Pressing the Alt key on your keyboard and the A key displays the Admin drop down menu.

Dialog box

Some menu items have three periods next to the option name. This indicates that selection of this option will result in a dialog box or secondary screen being displayed. Dialog boxes are used to provide the additional information to the user and require a response in the form of clicking on an OK or Cancel button. Some dialog boxes request the user to input additional information or to select an item.

Tool Bar

A tool bar appears on some of the screens in CC MIS. The icons in the tool bar serve as short cuts to access menu functions. Typical icons are:







Online Help Screens

Introduction

Help is available from any window within the CC MIS. The help system provides information about using the CC MIS product and its screens to perform functions.

Accessing the help function

The steps listed below explain how to enter the Help function.



- 1. On the CC MIS Main window, select Help / Help Topics.
- 2. The index window for the Help function appears.

Help options

There are three options: Help Topics, Window, and Using Help. The figure below shows the Help menu selected on the CC MIS Main menu.

- 🖓 CC M	CC MIS - Training 2 - jayr 🛛 🗖 🗖 🔀						
<u>S</u> ession	<u>D</u> isplays	<u>R</u> eports	<u>C</u> onfig	<u>P</u> rofile	Admin	<u>H</u> elp	
Conn	ection Stal	us	Repo	ort Status]	Help <u>T</u> op <u>W</u> indow <u>U</u> sing He	iics Ip
3:54:39 F	м 🎯 日						

Help menu

The three help options are described below.

Help Topics

Selection of the Help Topics option causes the screen in the figure below to appear. This window contains a listing of all of the Help topics available for CC MIS. Help topics are nested. Double-click on one of the options and additional topics related to the one selected are listed under that topic. Select a sub-topic and a help screen appears containing information on that topic.



Window

Selecting the Window option from the Help menu causes a screen to appear containing information specific to the window currently displayed on your terminal. An example of this screen is shown below.



Help on window



Using Help

Selecting the Using Help option from the Help menu causes a screen to appear containing information concerning the procedures specific to the function that is opened. An example of this screen is shown below.

Help Topic	s: Windows Help			?
Click a t	opic, and then click Display ng Help Finding a topic in Help Getting information in a dia Copying information from a Printing a Help topic Viewing a list of topics you Using the Find tab 2 Searching for words in 3 Searching for words in 3 Searching for phrases 3 Selecting a Help file to 3 Marking topics relevan 3 Finding similar topics stomizing Help	✓. Or click another ta log box a Help topic 've seen a Help file in a Help file is earch it to a search	b, such as Index.	
		Close	<u>P</u> rint	Cancel

This screen provides access to information on how to use the Windows help function. It also allows for the customization of the help screens.






Logging into CC MIS

Introduction

This chapter provides information on logging in and out of CC MIS.

A key step in learning to use CC MIS is learning how to log in and log out of the supervisor terminal.

Logging in

Supervisors with profiles established in CC MIS can log in to any supervisor position. Only one session per supervisor ID can run at a time. If you are logged into one position and you try to log in at a different position, you must either override your original login, causing the CC MIS system to log you out of the original session; or cancel your login attempt and return to the position at which you are already logged in. The steps below guide you through the login onto the CC MIS terminal.

Logging in to CC MIS



This is a sample icon. The name of the icon on your desktop or program group may be different from this sample.

Starting from your desktop or program group,

- 1. Double-click on the CC MIS icon.
- 2. Then, from the CC MIS Main window, click on **Session** and select **Login.**
- 3. The Login window appears.
- 4. Enter your supervisor ID [and password if required].
- 5. Identify your preferences, then click on the OK button.

The steps are explained in detail in the paragraphs that follow.

Double-click on the CC MIS icon

After MS Windows is running on your PC, a window containing the CC MIS icon should be on your display. The first step to logging in is to double-click MB1 on the CC MIS icon. The CC MIS Main window is displayed along with the Communications Setup window. If all settings are correct, click OK. The Communications Setup window disappears and the CC MIS Main window is displayed.

	CC MIS - Training 2	2 - Logged Out Itions Setup	
CC MIS Main	Profile Name Jays	_	<u>N</u> ew <u>D</u> elete
window	2: Connection Type	LAN to Partition	
	Hostname/Address	47.0.16.161	
	Partition	Steve	
	Password	💌 🔽 Save Password	
	ОК	Cancel <u>Apply</u>	Help

Click on Session and select Login option

After the CC MIS Main window appears, click on the Session menu button and select the Login option. The Session pulldown menu is shown below.

	劇CC MIS - Nortel - L	.ogged Out 📃 🛛 🗙
Selecting the Login option	<u>S</u> ession <u>H</u> elp	
from Session pulldown	Login	
	E <u>x</u> it	
	<u>S</u> etup	
	About CC MIS	

Enter supervisor ID and password (as required)

The CC MIS Login screen is displayed. Enter the supervisor ID (and password if required). Click on the OK button.

Note: The last supervisor ID entered is kept after logging out of CC MIS. Therefore, if you are logging back into a terminal you had logged into previously (and you do not have a password) you can press the Return key. If a password is required, press the Tab key to tab to the Password field.



	CC MIS Login	×
CC MIS login screen	Login ID Password Ol 234 Can Preferences System defaults Presonal settings Other supervisor ->	K Preferences allows you to select the settings to be used for displays (profiles and colors).

CC MIS Main window is displayed

The CC MIS Main window is displayed after successful login.

	圆CC M	IIS - Trair	ning 2 - ja	ayr				_ 🗆 ×
CC MIS Main	<u>S</u> ession	<u>D</u> isplays	<u>R</u> eports	<u>C</u> onfig	<u>P</u> rofile	<u>A</u> dmin	<u>H</u> elp	
window	Conr	ection Stat	us	Repo	ort Status			nfig Status None
	11:11:4	6 AM 🧯	3∎⊠(Б				

Note: The connection icon on the CC MIS Main menu has a slightly different appearance when the Networking feature is enabled and you log into a Network Access Partition (NAP).



Download New version

The Download dialog is displayed to provide an automatic upgrade process for your PC. This dialog is displayed when the CC MIS system has been upgraded on the Host and the version you are running doesn't match the Host version. Click on the Download button to start the upgrade process then reply to the prompts.

If desired, you can select another Host to which you are authorized connect or Exit without performing the upgrade.

	Windows	Host
Software Version	3.2.0.RTM.17	4.0.0JS.39
Protocol Version	7.7.1.3-7.13	8.30-8.31
Download	Download and install the the host. Due to the proto download may fail.	matching version from col mismatch, the
Ignore		
	🔲 Ignore this version mis	
Change Host	Use the communications different host to connect to	setup dialog to select a. D.

Logging out

To logout from your session, use the steps listed below.

Logging out of CC MIS

- 1. Return to the main window.
- 2. Select Session / Logout.
- 3. The CC MIS session is ended.

When the system goes down

If CC MIS goes down, your session terminates. In this instance, the Connection Status icon border goes from green (operational) to red (non-operational), and the message, Host Process Terminated, displays.

When the system comes back up, the Connection Status icon goes from red to green. However, the message, Host Process Terminated, continues to display. The message explains the need to log in to supervisors who may have been away from their terminal when the system went down.

Exiting CC MIS

To exit CC MIS, use the steps listed below.



Exiting CC MIS

From the CC MIS Main window.

- 1. Select Session / Exit.
- 2. The CC MIS window disappears.



Defining communications (Communications Setup screen)

The communication parameters are defined at installation. If you need to redefine these parameters you can do so by accessing the Communications Setup screen. You access the Communications Setup screen using the steps below.

Accessing communication parameters

- 1. Return to the CC MIS Main window.
- 2. Click on **Session** and select **Setup**/ **Communications**
- 3. The Communications Parameters window appears.

	gged Out 🛛 🗖 🖾
<u>S</u> ession <u>H</u> elp	
<u>L</u> ogin E <u>x</u> it	
<u>S</u> etup ▶ <u>C</u> o	mmunications
CC MIS Communications Setup	
Profile Name Leve Delete	
Connection Type LAN to Partition	
Hostname/Address 47.0.16.161	
Partition Steve	
Password 🛛 🐨 Save Password	
OK Cancel Apply Help	

Refer to the CC MIS Online Help for communication field descriptions.

- 4. Enter changes.
- 5. Click on the OK button.



Client Services (Printer, Fax and Filing Setup)

Printers, faxes, wallboards, and filing destinations can be defined using the Client Services Setup screen. You access the Client Services Setup screen using the steps below. Depending on your Windows configuration, the setup screen can be comprised of up to seven tabs.



- 1. Return to the CC MIS Main window.
- 2. Click on Session and select Setup/Client Services
- 3. The Setup window appears.

CC MIS Client Servic	es Setup		? ×
C Graphics	│ ② E-mail / Fax │	Printer	Wallboards E Text S system.
Select the client serv CC MIS can sa CC MIS can <u>pri</u> CC MIS can <u>E</u> - CC MIS can se	ices you wish to allow: ve text reports as files on nt reports from this comp mail and/or Fax reports fr nd messages to <u>w</u> allboar	this computer uter om this computer ds connected to	r this computer
Provide the <u>n</u> ame by	which CC MIS should ref	er to this comput	er:

Refer to the CC MIS Online Help for tab field descriptions.

- 4. Select tab and enter desired settings.
- 5. Click on the OK button.



Services Tab

The services tab allows you to specify the services that will be allowed for the PC.

If Microsoft ExchangeTM is available on your PC, You can use the E-Mail/ Fax tab to send reports using e-mail or fax to one or more recipients.

Note: You cannot e-mail or fax graphical reports.

CC MIS Client Servic	es Setup		? ×
C Graphics) 🕘 E-mail / E Filing) gure various client se	'Fax Contract of the CC M	Wallboards
Select the client serv CCMIS can se CCMIS can pr CCMIS can <u>E</u> CCMIS can se	ices you wish to allo ve text reports as file nt reports from this c mail and/or Fax repo nd messages to <u>w</u> all	w: is on this computer omputer rts from this comput boards connected t	er o this computer
Provide the <u>n</u> ame by	which CC MIS shoul	d refer to this comp	uter: Help

Filing Tab

The Filing tab allows you to specify the default folder, file name, and and the file type for the reports that are to be saved as files on the PC.

CC MIS Clie	nt Servic	es Setup			? ×
🖸 Gr 🐉 Ser	aphics vices	🔹 🧐 E-mail . 🔛 Filing	/Fax 🎯 Prin	nter	Wallboards ☐ Text
These set for reports	ings allow saved on	you to specify the de this computer as files	efault folder, :	file name, -	and file type
Default F	-ile Informa	ation			
<u>F</u> older	C:\WINE	OWS\TEMP\			
<u>N</u> ame	report				
<u>T</u> ype	tst			<u>B</u>	rowse
Automat Translal which is	ic Number tes ''###'' incremen ble <u>A</u> utom	ing found in the file nam ted for each auto-nu atic File Numbering	e or type into mbered file c) a 3 digit r reated.	number
		OK		Cancel	Help

Printer Tab

The Printer tab allows you to select the printers that are used to print reports. You can also specify the "Print to File" option to create a printer file. For example, if you are using a postscript printer, this option will create a postscript file.)

CC MIS Client Services Setup
I Graphics Ø E-mail / Fax I I Wallboards I Services I I Filing Ø Printer I I Text I
These settings allow you to select the printer to use when printing CC MIS reports. You can also choose to print to a file using the selected printer driver.
Select the printer to which CC MIS reports will be sent:
Print to a file Provide the file name and type (extension) below or leave blank to use the defaults defined on the "Filing" tab:
I Use banner pages OK Cancel

Text Tab

The Text tab allows you to specify the format setting for tabular reports.

C MIS Client Services	Setup	? ×
Graphics Graphics	 E-mail / Fax Filing Filing 	Printer 🖹 Text
Narrow Report Proper	ties (80 characters or less)-	
	-	🗌 Landscape
- Wide Report Propertie	es (more than 80 characters)	
Font		
Courier	<u> </u>	Landscape
	OK	Cancel Help



Graphics Tab

The Graphics tab allows you to specify the format setting for graphical reports. (In Release 4, graphical reports must be printed to PC-attached printers.)

CC MIS Client Services Setup
🕼 Services 🔚 Filing 🏈 Printer 🖹 Text 🖸 Graphics 🥘 E-mail / Fax 💷 Wallboards
_ I ext Properties
Font Size
T Arial 9 V Bold
Chart Options ☐ Landscape ☑ Display Values ☐ Gridlines
OK Cancel Help

Customizing Graphical Reports Colors

Email/Fax Tab

If Microsoft ExchangeTM is available on your PC, You can use the E-Mail/ Fax tab to send reports using e-mail or fax to one or more recipients.

Note: You cannot e-mail or fax graphical reports.

CC MIS Client Services Setup	? ×
🕼 Services 🕞 Filing 🏈 Printer 🗎 O Graphics 🖓 E-mail / Fax 🎟 Wallbo	Text
These settings configure the interface to Microsoft Exchange® for send reports to one or more recipients via E-mail and/or FAX.	Jing
Use the following profile for sending reports via Exchange:	
MS Exchange Settings	
✓ Send reports as <u>Attachments</u>	
OK Cancel	Help

Wallboard Tab

The wallboard tab allows you to configure a wallboard that is attached directly to the supervisor's PC.

CC MIS Client Services Setup	? ×
🕼 Services 🔚 Filing 🏈 Printer 🖸 Graphics 🥘 E-mail / Fax 🔳	I Text Wallboards
Port to which wallboards are connected:	
Wallboards connected to this port:	
Address Name	Multi-board
Add	163



Color Customization

If your PC supports more than 256 colors, you can customize the colors that are used in graphical reports. Click on the Chart Colors button of the Graphic Tab and the Color Selection dialog is displayed. Click on the Customize button in the Color Map area. A Color dalog is displayed. Select the desired colors and click on the Update Custom Color button to update the palette in the Color Selection dialog.

The color maps in the Color Selection dialogs for printers and displays can be customized. This option is available if your system is capable of supporting more than 256 colors.











CC MIS Main Functions

Introduction

CC MIS Main window

This chapter introduces you to the functions that are accessed from the from the CC MIS Main window.

The CC MIS Main window is shown in the figure below.

- 👰 CC M	IS - Trair		_ 🗆 ×				
<u>S</u> ession	<u>D</u> isplays	<u>R</u> eports	<u>C</u> onfig	<u>P</u> rofile	Admin	<u>H</u> elp	
Conn	ection Stal	us	Repo	ort Status]	Cor	nfig Status None
11:11:4	6 AM	∮ 🗌 🖂 🕻	B				

Displays menu

The Display menu contains commands to enter into Agent Status and Queue Statistics displays. Click on the Displays menu button to display the Displays menu.



Note: The Alarms menu option is displayed only when the SNMP feature is enabled.

Displays menu

Reports menu

The Reports menu contains commands for the CC MIS Reporting function.



Config menu

The Config menu contains commands for the Configuration Control function.



Profile menu

The Profile menu contains commands for setting a supervisor's profile.

🖓 CC M	IS - Trair	_ 🗆 X				
<u>S</u> ession	<u>D</u> isplays	<u>R</u> eports	<u>C</u> onfig	<u>P</u> rofile	<u>A</u> dmin	<u>H</u> elp
Conn	ection Stat	us	Repo	Opt Cole	ions prs	Config Status None
3:52:22 P	м 🎯 🗖	⊠ ⊡				

Profile menu

Config menu

Admin menu

The Admin menu contains commands used by the system administrator to administer control over the CC MIS environment. Admin options are not covered in this guide.

Regard C MI		mng-2 - k	ayı	D (1	1.1.1	
Session	<u>D</u> isplays	<u>H</u> eports	Config	Profile	Admin	<u>H</u> elp
Conne	ection Stat	us	Repo	ort Status	<u>P</u> riv	vilege Levels
]		<u> </u>	Se	opes
				ųш	<u>S</u> u	pervisors
			-		<u>D</u> e	fault Colors
3:53:09 Pt	M SH				Tin	ne <u>F</u> rames
					<u>T</u> h	resholds
					AC	D <u>G</u> roups
					AC	D-D <u>N</u> s
					Ag	ents
					<u>W</u> a	alkaway Codes
					Lin	e-Of- <u>B</u> usiness Codes
					Sc	<u>h</u> edules
					Lis	ts
					<u>C</u> u	stomer Options
					Clie	ent <u>M</u> anagement
					Lar	nguage Options

Admin menu

Networked CC MIS

Supervisors on CC MIS systems running with the Networking feature enabled on a Network Access Partition (NAP) have access to view information for supervisors running on a different CC MIS system, and to network-wide information for partitions defined as virtual nodes for the NAP..

Networking enables the following:

- Node field in all of the Configuration Control screens.
- Ability to insert groups into Configuration Control screens based on node selection.
- Partition code suffix on ACD Group names in real-time displays.
- Ability to view information based on a selected node in the view windows for the Audio, OFRT, and IBNRTE Tables.
- The Connection Status icon appears different on a NAP. The border on a NAP connection icon indicates the status of the virtual nodes associated with the NAP. If the border is red, it indicates that one or more virtual nodes are down.





5

Agent Status Display

Introduction

The Agent Status display provides information concerning the status of each position in an ACD group. This display allows the supervisor to see the type of call the agent is currently handling, the agents that are logged in, agents on walkaway, and other related information.

Accessing the Agent Status display

Perform the following steps to access the Agent Status display.



<u>D</u> isplays	<u>R</u> eports	<u>C</u> onfig				
Agent S	itatus	ļ,				
Queue :	Statistics					
<u>S</u> creen:	З					
Qua <u>d</u> ra	Qua <u>d</u> rants					
<u>F</u> ormulas						
Wallbo	ard Mocca	200				

- 1. From the CC MIS Main window, select **Displays** / **Agent Status**.
- 2. From the Agent Status Display menu, select one of the views from the View pulldown menu.
- 3. The Agent Status screen is displayed.

Agent Status display

The Agent Status display allows you to control the view of the positions for which agent status is displayed, the information presented for each position, and layout of the display. The Agent Status display is shown below.

Note: Display fields on the Agent Status display are controlled by the supervisor's profile. Specifically, if the Agent Performance option is disabled in the Priviledge Level Definition associated with the supervisor's profile, any field displaying agent performance can not be accessed. If the Agent Identity option is disabled, agent names can not be viewed.



File View Pre	terences Monitor	Help			
	B 🚳 👰 (None) 💽 🛃 🚺 🖸			
. E- Group 11	ACD GROUP	POSN STATUS	AGENT NAME	POSN STATUS	AGENT NAME
+ Group 12	Group 11	1100 ACD	Toney Lilly	1101 WALK 098	**** 1082
+- Group 13		1102 WAITING	**** 1031	1103 ACD	**** 1014
H- Group 14		1104 ACD	**** 1003	1105 ACD	**** 1099
E Group 15		1106 WAITING	**** 1074	1107 WALK 098	**** 1077
Group 15		1108 VARWRAP	**** 1027	1109 ACD	**** 1006
Group 16	Group 12	1110 WAITING	**** 1011	11111 WAITING	**** 1067
H- Group 17		1112 WAITING	Steve Crossley	1113 ACD	**** 1058
Group 18		1114 WAITING	**** 1069	1115 WAITING	**** 1098
🗄 Group 19		1116 WAITING	**** 1054	1117 ACD	**** 1072
庄 Group 20		1118 WALK 098	**** 1046	1119 ACD	**** 1093
	Group 13	1120 WAITING	**** 1064	1121 WAITING	Julie Strain
1		1122 WAITING	**** 1090	1123 WAITING	**** 1087
1		1124 WAITING	**** 1053	1125 WAITING	1017
1		1126 VARWRAP	1056	1127 AUD	1088
1	Group 14	1128 WAITING		1123 VARWRAP	
1	G1000 14	1122 WAITING	**** 1005	1122 WAITING	Tohi Abella
1		1124 ACDU ZDMO	100J	1125 ACD	**** 1005
1		1136 ACD	**** 1075	1137 WAITING	**** 1044
1		1138 WAITING	**** 1062	1139 ACD	**** 1041
1	Group 15		**** 1060	1141 WAITING	**** 1071
1	aloup to	1142 ACD	**** 1016	1143 ACD	**** 1050
1		1144 SPARE	1010	1145 WAITING	**** 1024

Agent Status display field descriptions

The following defines the fields that can appear on the Agent Status display.

Field	Description
NAVIGATOR PANE	Lists Groups and Subgroups. Allows quick "Drag and Drop" position moves for agents.
ACD GROUP	The ACD group that is being viewed.
POSN	The position ID of the physical phone set. Note: Clicking on an agent position ID results in a temporary agent detail window being displayed.
STATUS	The state of the position.
Not	te: This field is highlighted if it exceeds the threshold.
DURATIONS	Real-time timer that indicates the time period (in minutes and seconds) that the agent has been in the current state.
AGENT NAME	The name of the agent logged into the position.
LOGIN	Displayed when the login option is selected from the Preferences menu. This field displays the time of day the agent logged in. This field is always displayed in the right most column.
DUAL DN STATUS	Displayed when selected from the Preferences menu to show the information for a second DN (see position 1179 in the figure above).

Agent Status display



Setting the view and display

You can select one of three possible views through the Agent Status View menu: Subgroup, Scope, and Global. Views available to supervisors are determined by the access provided by the system administrator when creating your profile.

Your default view

You set the default view in your profile. CC MIS uses this view when you first login and access your Agent Status display. The default can be either subgroup/group, scope, or global. During a session, you can change this default to another view. You will see the change by logging out of the current session and logging back into CC MIS.

Selecting the Navigator option on the View menu causes the Navigator Pane to be displayed. The listing of subgroups in the Navigator Pane can be expanding using the Expand All option or hidden using the Collapse All option.

Selecting fonts for the displays

You can select the fonts for the displays. You identify the font used in the display through the Preferences menu. You identify the font, font style, and size.

Controlling the information presented in the display

You identify the information to appear for each position in the group through the Preferences menu. You can select States, Names, Hold Time, Durations, or Login Times, or desired combinations of these selections. If you do not select States, the color in which the position number appears indicates the state of the position. You define the colors for each state through the Preferences / Color menu item.

Note: If your system supports more than 256 colors, the Color Selection dialog will display a Customize button. Click on this button to display a Color dialog. The colors you in this dialog will be placed in the color map for use in displays.

Showing elapsed time for agent positions

The CC MIS system tracks the length of time an agent position spends in each state. To view this information in the Agent Status display, select the Duration option from the Preferences menu. This field is always displayed in the Agent Detail window (accessed by clicking on the agent position) and on Agent Status display printouts.

Hold Time

The Hold Time option is selected from the Preferences menu. The Hold Time option affects the way the time is displayed in the Duration field. When enabled, each time the ACD or DN call is placed on hold, the timer resets and begins counting. An underline ($_$) is used to differentiate hold time from total ACD or DN call time.



After the hold state is terminated, the timer reverts to displaying the total call duration.

ACD Group detail window

You can display an ACD Group Detail window by positioning the cursor on an ACD Group ID in the Agent Status window and clicking the right mouse button.

🖀 ACD Gr	oup Detail -	555-002-00	
E <u>x</u> it			
STATUS	POSITIONS	STATUS	POSITIONS
ACD	0	DNIN	0
ACD HOLD	1	DNIHOLD	0
NOT RDY	0	DNOUT	1
VARWRAF	> 0	DNO HOLE) 0
WALK	1		
WAITING	8		
FORCED	0		
SPARE	0		
			<u> </u>
Total	10	Total	1

Subgroup detail window

You can display a Subgroup Detail window by positioning the cursor on a Subgroup ID in the Navigator Pane and clicking the right mouse button.

🚰 Subgroup	Detail - 1000		_ 🗆 ×
STATUS	POSITIONS	STATUS	POSITIONS
ACD	3	DN IN	0
ACD HOLD	0	DNI HOLD	0
NOT RDY	0	DN OUT	0
VARWRAP	31	DNO HOLD	0
WALK	Ō		
WAITING	2		
FORCED	0		
SPARE	0		
Total	5	Total	0

ACD Group display

ACD Group display

Miscellaneous display functions

Selecting colors and fonts for displays

You can set the colors and fonts for the elements of a display.

Note: If your system supports more than 256 colors, the Color Selection dialog will display a Customize button. Click on this button to display a Color dialog. The colors you in this dialog will be placed in the color map for use in displays.

Saving Preferences

You can set preferences for fonts and colors, then save the settings for the display.

Monitoring another supervisor

You can observe the displays of another supervisor if you have the Display option Monitor selected in your Privilege Level definition. This feature is useful to supervisors when a peer is absent from their workstation and someone else must monitor the activity of the agents and queue for which the supervisor is responsible.

Note: When monitoring another supervisor's display in scope view, the display will be limited to the scope restrictions of the supervisor ID you are monitoring. (This is transparent if both you and the supervisor you are monitoring have a global scope restriction.)

Agent Detail window

The Windows interface allows you to display an Agent Detail window by positioning the cursor on an agent position ID in the Agent Status window and single-clicking the right mouse button. The figure below shows an example of the Agent Detail window with the Options menu displayed. The selection of one of these options changes the content and layout of the detail screen.

Note: This window cannot be displayed if the Agent Performance option has been disabled in the Priviledge Level Definition associated with the supervisor's profile.



Agent Detail options menu



Options menu

selections









Queue Statistics Display

Introduction

The Queue Statistics display provides information about the efficiency with which an ACD group is handling calls.

Accessing the Queue Statistics display

Perform the steps to access the default Queue Statistics display. The Default Display field of your profile determines the format of the Queue Statistics display.

The System Administrator determines the default when creating your profile. If you have access to your profile, you can change the default.

Steps Accessing the Queue Statistics display



- 1. From the CC MIS Main window, select **Displays** / **Queue Statistics**.
- 2. The default Queue Statistics screen is displayed.

The Queue Statistics display (with one of many views) is shown in the figure below.



Queue Statistics - Global											
File View Preferences	Monitor	r <u>H</u> elp									
🏦 🚳 👰 (None)	-	₩ ?									
		AVG	EST						OVERFLO	W ——— W	L
	AVG	ACD	AGTS	SRUC	CALL	CALL	CALL	IN	IN	OVF	
ACD GROUP	DLY	TIME	RQD	LVL%	ABDN	ANS	WAIT	ANS	WAIT	OUT	
Accounting	7	67	4	6	5	14	6	6	5	6	
Billing	3	1 08	7	6	5	18	5	5	5	5	
Computer Center	7	77	10	6	5	18	5	5	5	5	
Credit Dept	2	90	30	6	5	19	6	5	5	5	
Inquiries	7	151	36	6	5	15	5	5	5	5	
Promotions	2	179	36	6	5	18	5	5	5	5	
Reservations	7	113	23	6	5	12	5	5	5	9	
Sales	7	135	5	6	5	14	5	5	0	9	
		0. 1257 - 251245		— Pri	mary Po	sitio	n Status	5——	-Secon	dary—	
	Staff	ed Spa	are	ACD+		NOT	VAR- 4	WALK	DNI+	DNO+	
ACD GROUP				HOLD	WAIT R	EADY	WRAP (AWAY	HOLD	HOLD	
Accounting	1	6	5	1	9	5	5	9	5	5	
Billing	1	6	6	1	9	5	6	5	5	5	
Computer Center	1	8	5	2	6	6	2	6	6	6	
Credit Dept	1	6	5	5	4	5	5	1	5	(5)	
Inquiries	1	5	5	3	6	6	6	1	1	1	
Promotions	1	5	5	3	6	5	1	S	5	5	
Reservations	1	5	5	3	7	5	5	5	5	5	
Sales	1	5	0	5	8	3	2	8	1	ß	
10 Groups											

Queue Statistics display

Changing or controlling the Queue Statistics display

There are two things you can change or control when using the Queue Statistics display:

- the groups on which statistics are displayed
- the format in which statistics are displayed

When using the Queue Statistics display, you can control

- groups by setting the view to Single Group, Scope, Global, or New ACD Group; or if enabled in your privilege level definition, monitoring another supervisor
- format by setting it to one of the four standard formats, a personal format or a public format

Setting the view

You can select a view from the View menu. Depending upon your scope settings, the following views may be available:

- Single Group
- Scope
- Global

Additional views (such as New Subgroup) may also be available depending on you access privileges. Access privileges are provided by the System Administrator.



Your default view

You set the default view in your profile. CC MIS uses this view when you first login and access your Queue Statistics display. The default is selected from the menu list. During a session, you can change this default to another view. You will see the change by logging out of your current session and logging back in.

Controlling the format

The format of the display refers to the manner in which the statistics are presented, tabular or graphic. Unlike the Agent Status display, the Queue Statistics display can be customized. Therefore, you can create formats in addition to the standard formats provided with the system. By customizing the display, you select the statistics presented in the display, add meaningful names to the statistics, and choose whether to display the information in tabular or graphic format.

Changing the display format without changing the default

While you are in a session, you can change the format temporarily; that is, changing the format until you logout, or change the format again. You change the format through the View / New Display Format command. If you change the display format without changing the default, and you logout, CC MIS reverts to your default Queue Statistics display when you establish another session.



Creating your own Queue Statistics display

You can create your own Queue Statistics display to identify the information presented in the display and its location on the screen. In order to create your own personal Queue Statistics display, you must have the Display option Personal formats selected in your privilege level. This option allows you to create, modify, and delete personal display formats using the Quadrant Definition and Screen Definition modes.

Note: Your supervisor privilege level must be set to allow you to define formulas, modify public quadrants, and define public screens. The Display option Formulas selected in your privilege level. If a system admin password is defined, you must enter the password to access admin functions.

Overview of the process

There are three basic steps to creating your own Queue Statistics display; defining formulas, defining quadrants, and defining screens. The following paragraphs describe the basic process of creating your own Queue Statistics display.

Step 1: Defining formulas

First you define any formulas you need to collect the data you want in your display. However, you do not need to create custom formulas; you can use any of the existing statistics collected by CC MIS. The Display Formulas window is accessed by selecting the Displays / Formulas option from the CC MIS Main window.

The Display Formulas screen is shown in the figure below.

	🔝 Display Fo	rmulas			-			
	<u>F</u> ile <u>E</u> dit <u>H</u>	elp						
		<u>x B B ~ ?</u>						
	∐itle	24hr - Maximum abando	oning delay					
	<u>G</u> raph Title	24h Max Abd Del			Divide las Zene Treestreent			
	C <u>o</u> lumn Title	24HR Def	ault Display Format Se	econds 🔹	 Divide by <u>2</u>ero Treatment— Divide by One 			
		DELAY	Minimum Width 7	•	O Force To Zero			
Display Formulas								
window	<u>C</u> alculation	24hr Max Abd Delay						
	Operators	St <u>a</u> tistics						
	+ -	24hr Abd Aft Thrsh 24hr Abd After RAN	24hr Calls Ans 24hr Calls Offrd	24hr Tot Ans Delay	ACD Transferred In	Bi		
	* /	24hr Ans Aft Thrsh	24hr Max Abd Delay	ACD Call Time	Active Time	Ci		
	MIN MAX	24hr Calls Abnd 24hr Calls Abnd LQ	24hr Max Ans Delay 24hr Max TOF Delay	ACD Talk Threshold ACD Talk Time	Agent Force-outs All Aqents Busy Time	Ci Ci		
	()					▶		



Step 2: Defining quadrants

In this step, you define the way the information will be presented in a quadrant. There are two quadrant sizes: full and half screen. There are two types of layout: tabular and graphic.

You have the option of using public quadrants, defined by system administrators, or using your own quadrants. When you create your own quadrant, it can be saved as personal or public.

You can define a total of five personal quadrants.

Defining tabular quadrants

Tabular quadrants are defined using the Quadrant Definition window. The window is displayed by selecting the Displays / Quadrants option from the CC MIS Main window.

The Quadrant Definition window is shown in the figure below.



The lower portion of the screen contains standard formulas. It is recommended that you select a standard quadrant then modify its values and titles as desired. To edit, click on the Edit Heading and Edit Threshold buttons to the left of the list.

Refer to the CC MIS Online Help for descriptions of the fields on the Quadrant Definition window.

display (Tabular)

Defining graphic quadrants

Graphic quadrants are defined using the same window as the tabular quadrant. When the Graphic button is selected in the style field, the window is redrawn with the fields shown in the figure below.

Eile Edit Help	nition		
<u>N</u> ame	[
Style	Tabular Graphic Full Width		
<u>S</u> elected Elements			
Scaling <u>M</u> ethod	Floating	□ Segment <u>V</u> alues	🗖 <u>B</u> ar Totals
<u>H</u> eading			
Edit Elements	Average answering delay Average answering delay Average answering delay Average answering delay Average answering delay		
Edit	222 ³		
Legend	123 24hr - Maximum ume oveniow delay		
	222 12 24hr - Number of calls abandoned after RAN		
	999 12x 24hr - Number of calls abandoned after threshold		
	222 123 24hr - Number of calls abandoned after threshold 222 123 24hr - Number of calls abandoned before RAN		

Quadrant Defintion display (Graphic)

> The lower portion of the screen contains standard formulas. It is recommended that you select a standard quadrant then modify its values and titles as desired. To edit, click on the Edit Legend button to the left of the list.

> Refer to the CC MIS Online Help for descriptions of the fields on the Quadrant Definition window.

> When finished defining the quadrant, save the screen by selecting the Save option from the File menu.

Saving your quadrant as a public or personal quadrant

Public quadrants are available to all supervisors, while personal quadrants are available only to you. Only System Administrators can assign the supervisor the privilege level needed to create public quadrants. To create a personal quadrant, save your definition as a personal quadrant using the File / Save command, then selecting Personal in the popup dialog.

When defining a quadrant, the File and Edit menus provide the following functions as shortcuts:

- reading an existing quadrant
- undoing changes to quadrant
- overwrite an existing quadrant
- delete an existing quadrant



Step 3: Defining screens

In this step, you name your display, and position the quadrants in the display. You have the option of using public screen definitions or using your own. When you create your own screen definition, it can be saved as personal or public. You can define up to five personal screens.

After defining your quadrant, you position the quadrants on a screen. The size of a quadrant must be considered when placing the quadrant on the screen.

Full screen quadrants can be placed only in either the upper or lower left areas of the screen. Lower screen quadrants can be defined only if a quadrant is placed above it. In addition, the lower screen quadrants are optional. If there is only an upper quadrant, the system automatically extends the display to the bottom of the screen.

Select the Displays / Screens command on the CC MIS Main window.

	關Display Screen Definition	_ 🗆 ×
	<u>File E</u> dit <u>H</u> elp	
	Screen <u>N</u> ame	
	Upper Quadrants	
ionlass Caroon	Left 🏧 🚮 Average Answer Delay - Graphic	-
efinition window	Right Average State Durations - Tabular	-
	_Lower Quadrants (Optional)	
	Left ASS. NAP 4.0 Thresholds	•
	Right (None)	7

Refer to the CC MIS Online Help for descriptions of the fields on the Display Screen Definition window.

When you are defining a screen, you can use any standard quadrant, public quadrant, or a personal quadrant (defined by you). There are predefined standard quadrants available from the drop down menu in the Screen Definition window.

You can read an existing screen definition and modify it to meet your needs by selecting the File / Open command, then selecting the definition from the list. You can also overwrite an existing definition.

D D After the screen is defined, you can view the screen using the steps below.

PS Viewing a custom display

- 1. From the Queue Statistics Display, select View / New Display format.
- 2. At the New Display Format? box, select the screen.
- 3. Click on ok.

Use the steps below to set your default to display a custom screen.

Setting your default to a custom display

- jayr			
2onfig	<u>P</u> rofile	<u>A</u> dmin	<u>H</u> elp
Rep	<u>O</u> ptions		
	<u>C</u> olor		

- 1. From the main window, select **Profile / Options**. The system displays the Profile Maintenance screen.
- 2. Select the default display (in the real-time display options area). At the Default Display screen, click on the down arrow to highlight your format.
- 3. Save the default settings.
- a. From the Profile Maintenance menu, select File / Validate to verify entries are valid.
- b. Select File / Save to save settings
- 4. Exit and implement changes immediately.
- a. From the Profile Maintenance menu, select File / Exit. A dialog box appears.
- b. Read the information box, and click Yes if you want the changes to be applied immediately. You will be logged off of CC MIS. Note: If you do not want to be logged out, click No.



7

Wallboard Messages

Introduction

Wallboards are LED message boards that are mounted on the walls of an ACD group office. Supervisors use wallboards to notify agents of ACD statistical information and administrative information. Supervisors construct messages to suit their needs, define what messages are to be displayed, and define time frames for displaying messages. Messages consist of text and variable information such as Queue Statistics display formula results.

Users with Spectrum wallboards can send multi-color messages and multiple line text format (depending on model of wallboard).

Accessing the message screen

The Wallboard Message Definition screen allows supervisors to define the actual messages that are displayed on the wallboard.

Steps Access Wallboard Message Definition



Basic steps for defining and displaying messages on the wallboard are:

- 1. Define the message(s) using Wallboard Message Definition screen.
- 2. Define the display(s) using Wallboard Display Definition screen.
- 3. Send messages to wallboard using Wallboard Run Table screen.



You can send a "quick message" to the wallboard by completing the Quick Message fields and sending the message.

The Walboard Message Definition display is shown in the figure below.

	🚟 Wallboard Message Definition
	<u>File E</u> dit <u>H</u> elp
	Text
Wallboard	Color ABC (Auto) 💌 Style Standard, 7 High 💌 🗖 Double-high
message definition	Display Always
screen	<1> <1> <2> <1> <3> <4> <5> <6> ACD Group <1> Time <0> Date
	Formula 🔐 (None)
	Format Width (Auto) View Normal Color 23 (Auto)
	Ikreshold (None)
	Warning Zone 0 ₩arning Color 123 (Auto)
	Agdible Alarm Never
	Quick Message
	(All Groups)
	Send Quick Message Clear Quick Messages

Wallboard Message Definition screen fields

Text field - Messages must not exceed 100 characters (this includes five parameters that represent values from formulas). The character sequence <1>, <2>, ... <5>, <G>, <T>, <D> in the message text refers to the variables. Multiple lines can be defined for the message using line breaks "\n". A line break counts as two of the 100 characters allowed for the message.

Color, Style, Display fields - The display formats describes how the message is displayed on the wallboard. Click on the Down Arrow to select a format in each field.

Click next to desired optional settings such as Double-high or Double-wide options. (The display formats that you can use depend on the type of wallboard in use.)

Variable tabs - Contains a tab for each of the variables that can be defined within a message. Variables represent formulas that are based on real-time statistical data collected by the system. Choose up to five formulas to display on the wallboard <1> thru <5>. The formulas available on the wallboard are the Queue Statistics display formulas, 10-min window, 24 hour, and Shift statistics. Click on the Down Arrow to view available options.

Page 7-2


The ACD Group variable <G> displays the primary DN or defined name for the ACD group specified in the Wallboard Display Definition screen.

The Date $\langle D \rangle$ variable displays the date variable fields and the Time $\langle T \rangle$ variable displays the Time variable fields.

Quick Message Fields

The Quick message fields are used to quickly define and send an immediate message to the wallboard without needing to leave the Wallboard message Definition screen. After the message is defined and the parameters are specified, click on the Send Quick Message button.

Defining a wallboard message

Use the following steps to define a wallboard message.

Defining a wallboard message

- 1. Select **Displays/Wallboard Messages** from the CC MIS Main window. The Wallboard Message Definition screen is displayed.
- 2. Define the message:
- a. At the Wallboard Message Definition window, access the Message Text box.
- b. Enter the message to appear on the wallboard. Enter variables as a number between 1 and 5, surrounded by <>. (Example: Service Level <1>)
- c. Specify the desired display format characteristics: color, style, and display format.
- d. Click on the tab for variable choices (to define variables entered in message). Complete the variable information in the tab area.
- e. For the variable, click on the down arrow in the Display Format box. Highlight your choice.

3. Save the definition:

- a. At the Wallboard Message Definition window, select File / Save.
- b. If the definition exists already, and you wish to update the definition, click OK on the information box.

Note: CC MIS allows you to save multiple wallboard messages with the same name. If you are modifying an existing wallboard message, save the modification by using the Save command to prevent the system from saving different wallboard message definitions with the same name.

4. Exit the screen by selecting **File / Exit**. The system returns to the main window.



Wallboard Display Definitions

Wallboard Display Definitions allow the supervisor to select the message(s) to be displayed on the wallboard(s).

Accessing the Wallboard Display



- 1. From the CC MIS Main window, select Displays / Wallboard Displays.
- 2. The Wallboard Display Definition screen is displayed.

The Wallboard Display Definition screen is shown below.

	Ele Edit Help			X
	Display Definition Name	Update Rate	Pre	sentation Speed
	Date and Time	10 (secs)	Slow ј	Fast
Wallboard	<u>M</u> essage List			
display definition		v	7	V
screen	Message	ACD Group	Position	Presentation Mode
	See (D) (T)	(All Groups)	Fill	Hold
	End of list			

Wallboard Display Definition screen fields

Display Definition Name - Define a name that uniquely identifies the display definition. Use up to 40 characters in the name. CC MIS can save up to 250 display definitions.

Update Rate - Enter a value in seconds (range 2 - 999). This field determines the frequency that the wallboard display contents are updated. (On Spectrum boards, this is the rate at which variable information is updated.



On Daktronics boards, this is the rate at which the messages are cycled on the wallboard.)

Message - Select up to five messages to be displayed on the wallboard. Click on the menu arrow to view a list of messages. (Window must be set to the insert mode by clicking on the End of List title in the Message area. Before a message can be selected, you must select Edit / Insert to create a place holder for the message to be added.)

Message List fields (Message, ACD Group, Position, and Presentation Mode) - If the corresponding message contains variables then identify the data source which corresponds to the message. If a selection is not made from the pop-up menu then the default value (All Groups) will be used.

Presentation Mode - Specifies how the message is to be displayed on the wallboard.

Presentation Speed - Specifies how long (or quick) the message is to be displayed on the wallboard before it is rotated.



Defining a wallboard display

After the display and message definitions are complete, the wallboard display is defined using the steps below.

steps Defining a wallboard display

- 1. From the main window, select **Displays** / **Wallboard Displays**.
- 2. Enter information into the Wallboard Display Definition window:

Note: To set the window into the Insert mode to add messages, you must click on the End of List title in the message area.

- a. Enter a name and select a presentation speed.
- b. Select the messages to be displayed (1 5) by selecting Edit / Insert to create a message holder, then selecting the desired message from the Message List.
 Specify the ACD Group, Position, and Presentation Mode for the message. (Repeat for each message.)
- c. Enter the desired update rate, in seconds.
- 3. Save the definition as follows:
- a. At the Wallboard Message Definition window, select File / Save.
- b. If the definition exists already, click OK on the information box.

If this is a new definition, click NEW at the Save Message Definition As box.

4. Return to the main window by selecting **File / Exit** from the Wallboard Display Definition window.



Sending a message to the wallboard

Follow the steps below to send a message to the wallboard display(s).

Steps Sending a message to the wallboard

- 1. From the main window, select **Displays** / **Wallboard Run Table**.
- 2. Read the wallboard definition.
- 3. Send the message to the wallboard.
- 4. Select File / Exit to return to the main window.

The Wallboard Run Table window is shown in the figure below.

🛞 wanooard	Run Table				_
File Options	Help				
≜ ₹ 🤋					
<u>D</u> is	lay Call S	tats 2			Update
Quick Mess	ge (None)			-	
<u>Q</u> uick Mess	ge (None)			•	
Quick Mess Wallboard	ge (None) Current Display				
Quick Mess Wallboard Sales 2	ge (None) Current Display SSS, Call Stats :	2			
Quick Mess Wallboard Sales 2 I/F to scraper	ge (None) Current Display SSS, Call Stats :	2 ar)			
Quick Mess Wallboard Sales 2 I/F to scraper Steve	ge (None) Current Display SSS, Call Stats : Call Stats : Call Stats : Call Stats : Call Stats :	2 ar) ar)			
Quick Mess Wallboard Sales 2 I/F to scraper Steve W95_WB	ge (None) Current Display Current Display Call Stats : (Reset/Cle Constitution (Reset/Cle	2 ar) ar) c - Identificat	tion)		

Note: The Quick Message field is used to send an immediate message to the wallboard.

Wallboard Run Table screen



Clearing a wallboard

In order to clear a wallboard display, send the Reset/Clear standard display to the wallboard.





8

Alarms (SNMP)

Introduction

Note: The Alarms option is displayed only if the SNMP feature is enabled and you have supervisor access privileges to this feature. Due to the technical nature of the SNMP feature, a background in network management and the SNMP protocol is recommended for administrators and users of this feature. For additional information concerning this feature, refer to the CC MIS Online Help.

The Alarms Definition window is the starting point for all SNMP-related activities at the partition level, including:

- alarm definition and maintenance,
- SNMP community setup and maintenance, and
- SNMP MIB file transfer

From this window, you can setup up to 100 custom statistics to be monitored for each ACD group in the partition. The setup of each statistic includes threshold and alarm information. The information defined for each Alarm Definition is what is provided to a Network Management System (NMS) when it queries for the CC MIS Partition MIB entries.

Use the steps below to access the Alarm Definition window.

steps Accessing the Alarms definition screen





The Alarms Definition screen is shown in the figure below.

Alarm definition screen	Alarm Definition File Edit Preferences Options SNMP Help Alarm ID Alarm Name 24 Hour TOF Delays Formula 24 Hour TOF Delays Introshold Alarm Type Critical Y Groups (All) ID Name Alarm Groups	 Tool bar Form template area
	Records: 0/100 Selected: 0	 Definitions list Status bar

Description

The Alarm Definition window consists of four major components; tool bar, status bar, form template and a definitions list.

Tool bar

The tool bar is the row of buttons across the top of the window which provides shortcuts to many of the commands available on the window's menu. A tool-tip window is displayed for a short time when the mouse cursor is positioned over one of the tool bar buttons. This window contains a brief description of the function performed by the particular button.

Status bar

The status bar appears at the bottom of the window and consists of three sections. The first section indicates the number of records defined and the maximum number allowed. The second section indicates the number of records currently selected in the definitions list. The third section is for displaying status and progress messages.

Form template

The form template consists of the fields in the top half of the screen which are used for entering and modifying the fields which make up an alarm definition. The definitions list in the bottom half of the screen displays a scrollable list of currently defined alarm definitions. Any or all of the fields in the definition may be displayed as a column in the definitions list. The only restriction is that the ID column must always appear in the first column. As columns are added or removed, the columns will automatically resize themselves to provide a best fit for the current width of the window.

The fields in this template are described below:

Alarm ID	A unique alarm ID number in the range 1 to 100.
Alarm Name	The name assigned to the alarm definition. This name can consist of from 1 to 30 characters excluding the vertical bar character ().
Formula	The standard or custom formula used to compute the statistic value upon which the alarm condition is based.
Threshold Level	This field determines whether the computed value for the statistic should cause an alarm condition if its value rises above or falls below the threshold value defined for the alarm. The two possible values for this field are Above or Below.
Threshold Type	The type of threshold to apply to the statistic value. This can be any of the available ACD group thresholds (as defined via Threshold Definition) or the following special threshold type:
	(Zero) - The threshold value is defined solely by the constant value entered in the "Plus" field.
Plus	This field defines a numeric value to be added to the value of the ACD group threshold selected in the "Threshold Type" field to arrive at the threshold value used for determining when the statistic value indicates an alarm state. This constant component of the alarm threshold can be any signed 32-bit number (-2,147,483,647 through 2,147,483,647).
Alarm Type	This field determines the type of alarm (SNMP trap) to be generated by this alarm definition. The four possibilities are: Poll, Minor, Major, and Critical.
Alarm Delay	This field sets a delay period in seconds from the time that an alarm condition is first detected until the time that an SNMP trap is sent. If the alarm condition clears within this delay period, no trap will be sent. This delay value also applies to the clearing of an alarm condition. The maximum delay value is 999 seconds.
Alarm Groups	This field determines which ACD groups should cause traps to be generated. The field will contain the names of all currently defined ACD group lists (as defined in List Definition mode) and the special "(All)" selection. If a list is selected, only the groups in the specified list definition will cause traps to be generated. If "(All)" is selected, all ACD groups will cause traps to be generated.
Delay	This field allows you to enter a value to be used as the delay.

The operation of the Alarm Definition window depends on the current mode



as indicated by the label on the button in the upper right corner of the window. The two modes of operation are modify and add. When the window is entered, the initial mode is set to the add (if there are no alarm definitions currently defined). Otherwise, it is set to the modify mode.

Use the steps below to add an alarm definition.

Note: For more information concerning adding or modifying an alarm definition, select the Help / Window option.

Steps Creating an Alarm definition

- 1. From the alarm window, select **Options / Add** or click on the Add button.
- 2. Enter information into the Alarm Definition window.
- 3. Click on the Add button to send the definition to the database. The definition should now be listed in the list of alarm definitions.

Use the steps below to modify an existing alarm definition.



- 1. From the alarm window, select an existing alarm definition from the list of Alarm Definitions.
- 2. Make the desired changes.
- 3. Click on the Modify button to send the changes to the database.

Note: To cancel the changes, click on the Revert button (or select **Edit/Revert**) *before* you click the Modify button.



SNMP Community Setup

The SNMP Community Setup window is used to define the access rights for Network Management Systems wishing to access the CC MIS Partition MIB for this partition. This window is shown in the figure below.



This screen displays the current settings for each of the three communities defined by CC MIS. When a CC MIS partition is created, the community names are defaulted to "public", "secure", and "traps" for the read-only, read-write, and traps communities respectively. The members list for the read-only community will be set to 0.0.0.0, while the other two members lists will be empty.



- 1. From the Alarms Definition window, select **SNMP/Community Setup**.
- 2. The SNMP Community Setup window is displayed.

SNMP MIB Transfer

The SNMP MIB Transfer window is used to download the CC MIS MIB definition files to the local PC for use with a Network Management System. These MIB definition files are text files which define all of the SNMP objects implemented by the CC MIS system.



The SNMP MIB Transfer window is shown in the figure below.

SNMP MIB transfer screen	Choose the MIB to transfer Partition MIB (misptn.mib) This MIB contains the definition of the SNMP objects available at the partition level. System MIB (missys.mib) This MIB contains the definitions of system-level SNMP objects.	OK ancel Help
--------------------------------	--	---------------------

From this window you can select either the CC MIS Partition MIB or the CC MIS System MIB to be downloaded. After you select the desired MIB and click on the OK button, a Save As window is displayed.

Use the steps below to access the SNMP MIB Transfer screen.



- 1. From the Alarms Definition window, select **SNMP/MIB Transfer**.
- 2. The SNMP MIB Transfer window is displayed.





9

Reports

Introduction

The reporting feature of CC MIS provides you with the ability to print reports:

- in one of five categories: standard, personal, public, system, and event log
- on a schedule and ad-hoc
- on paper, on your terminal, to a file, or e-mail/fax to one or more recipients

In addition, you can create reports that can be imported into commercial spreadsheet packages.

Accessing the reporting functions

Except for scheduling a report to print, reporting abilities are provided through the Reports pulldown menu.

eps Accessing the Reports menu



1. From the CC MIS Main window, select Reports.

2. The Reports pulldown menu is displayed.

Generating a report

With one exception, the following steps are used in generating a report:

- 1. Identify the name for the report.
- 2. Identify the format information for the report.
- 3. Identify the options for the report.
- 4. Identify the output to destination: printer, screen, file. e-mail, or fax.
- 5. Select the desired values for the data selection fields.
- 6. Request that the report be generated immediately (ad hoc report) or be scheduled to print.



The exception is generating a system report. System reports do not require you to identify format, scope, or output device, as they provide pre-defined information.

Identifying the report format

Report formats are either standard, event log¹, personal, or public. The format identifies the data elements in the report.

Standard formats

The standard reports are formats provided by CC MIS. These formats generate tabular and graphic reports. The standard report formats are listed at the end of this chapter.

Personal formats

Each supervisor can create five personal formats. These formats are only available to the supervisor who creates them. Personal formats can be generated in tabular or graphic formats.

Public formats

Supervisor's with access to system administrator functions (Admin) can create public formats for all supervisors to use. These formats can generate tabular or graphic reports.

Identifying the format of the report

The format of the report refers to the following:

Time frame used to generate report

Time frame determines the granularity of the data reported and has to do with the way data is stored in the historical database. Possible time frames are interval, shift, day, week, month, and period.

Manner in which the data is reported

- by logical group
- by data and totals
- by totals only
- by data only
- by using secondary groupings through the Group by ... and by... feature
- the range to be used for the data elements specified in the report format.

The data elements can be defined as a single value or a range of values for

intervals months days periods shifts agents weeks subgroups ACD groups ACD-DNs LOB codes walkaway codes logical groups

^{1.} Event log reports cannot be generated or scheduled by supervisor's that have the Agent Performance option disabled in the Priviledge Level Definition associated with their Supervisor Profile.



Identify the type of report

When you identify the type of report, you either create a printed report or a data export report.

Generating a report

Creating a printed report

A printed report is a report that uses CC MIS to format the report. You may request reports that contain Totals Only or reports that contain Data and Totals. The Totals Only reports are useful when you do not need to show supporting information.

Creating a data export report

A data export report is a report that can be used by a commercial spreadsheet software package. By creating a data export report, you create a file of data records that is output to a printer or a PC. The file lists the title of the report and contains detail data only; it does not contain column headings nor column totals. When you generate a report, you can print it or have the output sent to your terminal for display.

Printing reports

When you print a report, you can direct it to a specific printer or to the default printer defined in your profile. A different printer may be defined for graphic or tabular reports. If you have the local print feature, the print goes to your local printer.

Viewing reports at your terminal

When you select screen as your output device, the report goes to your terminal. After it is complete, it may be viewed by double-clicking the report status icon on the Main window.

Note: You may need to size the viewing box so you can see the report in its entirety.

Requesting the report

After you define the report format, the scope of the data, and the output device, you may request the report, or if you have system administrator abilities, schedule the report.

Scheduling a report for printing

After you define the report, the report can be attached to a schedule and printed at a later time. You must have access to system administrator (Admin) abilities, schedule the report.

Note: Scheduled reports must have the print device set to a printer not to the screen. Otherwise, the printing of the report defaults to the customer options default printer.



Defining report parameters

You define the format, scope, output device, and manner of presenting information through the Report Parameter Definition screen. In this screen, you are given the option to name the definition and use the name as the title of the report.

The name of the report is used in menus to allow you to request the report by name, rather than recreating the report parameter definition each time you want to request the report.

Note: Ensure that the name you assign to a report is unique. CC MIS allows you to save multiple report parameter definitions with the same name.

Accessing Report Parameters screen

- 1. From the CC MIS Main window, select Reports/ Parameters.
- 2. The Report Parameter Definition screen is displayed.

The Report Parameter Definition screen is shown in the figure below.

	🔄 Report Parameter Definition	
	<u>File Edit Report Help</u>	
	<u>delx Beser ?</u>	
	Name	
		🗖 Use as title
	- Format	
	T-skylar	
ort	Content Style Printed Report - Data and Totals	🔽 Summary Info
meter		
	Output <u>To</u>	
$\frac{111011}{(N \land D)}$	Time Frame Interval 🔽 🔽 Logical Groups 📃 🖳 (Scree	en) 💌
ell (INAF)	Group by Agent 🔽 🔽 Interval Lengths	
	and hy (None)	
	Data Selections	
	Interval (Previous)	
	Day (Current)	
	Logical Group (All)	
	Agent (All)	
	Walkaway Code (All)	
	Supervisor Scope 1234 - jayr	Node (All) 💽



Fields in the Report Parameter Definition screen

Name - This field identifies the report. (The Use as Title button in this field allows you to identify the name of the report as the title of the report.)

Format Fields:

The first field in this area allows you to select Graphic or Tabular formats.

The second field identifies the category of the report, standard, public or personal, and allows you to select a format in that category from a menu. *Note:* Icons indicate if the format is standard, public, or personal.

Contents Style - This third field (just below the second field) identifies if the report is to be generated by totals only, data only, data & totals, or as data export.

Page Breaks - When selected, inserts page breaks into the report.

Language - On systems with the Language option enable, this field allows you to select the language to be used in the report.

Summary Info - When selected, a summary page is generated concerning the contents of the report.

Options Fields:

Time Frame -This field identifies the time frames for which data is collected. This field determines the granularity of data. Possible values are: intervals, shifts, days, weeks, periods, or months.

Group By And By - This field indicates secondary grouping, providing subtotals according to the chosen criteria. Possible selections from menu (depending on report) include: None, Shift, Day, Dst ACD Group, Logical Group, and Subgroup.

Logical Groups - When selected, this field indicates that you want the information grouped logically; that is, information for several different groups (defined as logical groups) summed together.

Interval Lengths - When selected, appends interval lengths to the interval time on interval reports. (For example, 12:30, 05 where the ,05 is the interval length.)

Network View - This field indicates that the Networking feature is enabled and that the time frame for the report contents will include values from the network. This provides an option for the NAP supervisor to specify how the data is collected from the remote nodes.

For example:

A NAP supervisor in Location 1 requests a previous interval report at 1700 EST. There are three nodes in the virtual network for this NAP; the first in Location 2, the second in Location 3 and the third in Location 4. Interval time frame reports allow the Network View option to be selected.

Network View enabled: The data from the previous interval relative to the local time of each node will be returned.

Node	NAP	Location 2	Location 3	Location 4
Time zone	EST	EST	CST	PST
Local time	1700	1700	1600	1400
Time requested	1630 - 1700	1630 - 1700	1530 - 1600	1330 - 1400
Interval returned		34 (1630 - 1700)	32 (1530 - 1600)	28 (1330 - 1400)

Network View disabled: The data from the (1630 - 1700) interval in each time zone will be returned. In this example, this interval has not yet occurred in Locations 3 or 4, therefore no data will be returned by these nodes.

Node	NAP	Location 2	Location 3	Location 4
Time zone	EST	EST	CST*	PST*
Local time	1700	1700	1600	1400
Time requested	1630 - 1700	1630 - 1700	1630 - 1700	1630 - 1700
Interval returned		34 (1630 - 1700)	34 (1630 - 1700)	34 (1630 - 1700)
	The shaded areas indicate time ranges that have not occurred as of 170 EST. No data will be returned by those nodes. The data from all node will be available as soon as the earliest time zone (in this case, PST) has completed the requested interval.			

Output To:

This field specifies where the report is to be sent. Selections can include printer, screen, file, or an e-mail/fax destination. If a file destination is selected, the File Name field is displayed. If an e-mail/fax destination is selected, a Destination field is displayed. (The destination address *must* be entered in this field.)

Note: Graphical reports cannot be e-mailed or faxed.



Data Selections:

This area defines ranges for data elements of the report format. For each field, you can select one of the following: All, Range, or defined lists (in applicable key fields). Interval and other time frame fields will also contain the Current and Previous selections.

Note: To select the previous time frame (such as day), you can select Previous rather than selecting Range then entering a -1.

Supervisor Scope- This field identifies the supervisor scope restriction to be used for the report.

Node - On a NAP partition, the Node field is used to restrict a report to a specific node. The values for the field are selected from the pulldown menu. (This field is not displayed on local partitions.)



Interval Configuration

Intervals for each hour of the day are configured in the Maintenance Interface. The intervals used by your partition can be viewed while in the Report Parameters Definition window by selecting the Reports / Intervals command. The Interval Configuration dialog is displayed.

Interval Configurat	ion 🛛
0:00 - 30	12:00 - 30
1:00 - 30	13:00 - 30
2:00 - 30	14:00 - 30
3:00 - 30	15:00 - 30
4:00 - 30	16:00 - 30
5:00 - 30	17:00 - 30
6:00 - 30	18:00 - 30
7:00 - 30	19:00 - 30
8:00 - 30	20:00 - 30
9:00 - 30	21:00 - 30
10:00 - 30	22:00 - 30
11:00 - 30	23:00 - 30
	ОК

Report Status

After a report is requested, the status of the report can be viewed using the Report status logs window. This window is accessed from the Reports menu on the CC MIS Main window.

The Report Status Logs window is shown below.

🕅 Report Status Logs				_ 🗆 X
<u>F</u> ile <u>S</u> elect ⊻iew <u>H</u>	<u>l</u> elp	10		
🛛 🗙 🖏 888 - Ming	NAP 🗸	?		
Request Time	Status	Туре	Report Name	Destina
03/24/97 9:57:36 AM	Complete	Print	Jiulie_walk	DeskJe
03/24/97 9:49:53 AM	Complete	Print	Preview Report	DeskJe
03/24/97 9:35:43 AM	Complete	Print	Preview Report	DeskJe
03/21/97 7:15:37 PM	Generating	Print	TABULAR FORMAT DATABASE REPORT	HP Las
03/21/97 7:15:22 PM	Complete	Print	INTERVAL CONFIGURATION DATABASE REPORT	HP Las
03/21/97 3:42:26 PM	Complete	Print	ACD Group by Line of Business Code Report	DeskJe
03/21/97 3:32:20 PM	Complete	Print	INTERVAL CONFIGURATION DATABASE REPORT	HP Las
03/21/97 3:27:48 PM	Complete	Print	INTERVAL CONFIGURATION DATABASE REPORT	HP Las
	-			
Logs: 8 Selected:	0			1.

Cancelling Pending Reports

After a report is requested and is still pending, the report can be cancelled using the File/Delete command on the Report status logs window. The Report Status Logs window is accessed from the Reports menu on the CC MIS Main window.

To cancel a pending report, highlight the pending report in the list and select the File/Delete command.

Cancelling Report Generation

To cancel the generation of a report from the Report parameters screen, click on the Cancel Report button on the toolbar.





Creating a report definition

Perform the steps below to create a Report Parameter Definition.

Creating a report definition

- 1. From the CC MIS Main window, select **Reports**/ **Parameters**.
- 2. The Report Parameter Definition screen is displayed.
- 3. Specify the report contents in the data fields.
- 4 Save the report parameters:
- a. Select File / Save.
- b. At the Save Report Definition As box, select the New Personal or New Public button.
- c. The Save status screen will appear. Select OK.
- 5. From the Report Parameter Definition screen, select File / Exit.



Creating ad-hoc reports

By requesting a report, rather than scheduling it, you generate an ad-hoc report. To generate an ad-hoc report, you fill in the report parameters on the Report Parameter Definition screen, and then request the report.

Determining report status

After you request an ad-hoc report that is to be sent to the screen, the system notifies you that a report is gathering information or is pending. The system notifies you of the status of the report through the Report Status icon on the CC MIS Main window. The Report Pending status is indicated by a report with an hour glass.

Viewing a report at your desktop

Once the report arrives on your desktop, you can view it. This report remains on your desktop until you delete it or request another soft copy report. Use the steps below to view your report.

Reports sent to printers cannot be viewed on your desktop and do not affect a report that is at your desktop.

You can view a report on your screen, leaving the window containing the report open, and request a different report through the Report Parameter Screen. If the second report is sent to your screen also, you will not be able to view it until you close the window through which you viewed the first report requested.



- 1. From the CC MIS Main window, select **Reports**/ **View** or double-click on the Report icon.
- 2. The Report is displayed.

Note: You may need to resize the window and use the scroll bars to view the entire report.

Viewing the report parameters

Once a report has arrived at your desktop, you can view the report parameters that created it, in addition to viewing the report. To view the parameters, view the report, then select File / View Summary.



Generating a data export report

Generating a data export report is a simple matter of identifying Data Export Report as the Report Contents at the Report Parameter Definition screen and sending the report to an output device.

Note: This is just the format of the report being specified. After the report format is set, the report is sent to the output device. (Any report format can be sent to a PC).

The report can be sent to any output device in your system that you can access from the Report Parameter Definition screen. If the device is a printer, it prints a series of data records. If the device is a PC designated to receive files, it receives a software file that contains the series of data records.

Viewing another supervisor's report

You can view another supervisor's report from your terminal, if that supervisor has already requested the report, and the report is in their inbox.



- 1. From the display window, select **Reports / Monitor View**.
- 2. The system displays the Supervisor to Monitor? box. At the box, identify the supervisor, then click on OK.

If a report is available, it appears on your screen.

Generating an Event Log report

Event Log reports provide information about agent activities. Refer to Help text for information about hese reports. Use the steps below to print an Event Log report.

Note: These reports are not available for supervisor's which have the Agent Performance option disabled in the Priviledge Level Definition associated with their Supervisor Profile.

Printing an Event Log report

- 1. From the main window, select **Reports / Parameters**.
- 2. The system displays the Report Parameters screen. Identify your report parameters:
- a. At the format box, click on Event Log. Select your choice.
- b. At the Output Device box, select the device.
- c. At the Data Selection box, provide the range for each data element.
- d. Select Report / Generate.
- e. Select File / Exit.

Printing a system report

System reports provide information derived from the system database. As a result, they do not require that you define the report parameters for them. The system reports are as follows:

- ACD Group Configuration Report
- ACD Group Database Report
- ACD Networks Targets Configuration Report
- ACD Position Configuration Report
- Supervisor Database Report
- Privilege Level Database Report
- Scope Database Report
- Agent Database Report
- Alarm Definitions Database Report
- ACD-DN Configuration Report
- Threshold Definition Database Report
- Shift Definition Database Report
- Period Definition Database Report



I

- Schedule Definition Database Report
- Logical Group Database Report
- LOB Code Database Report
- Interval Configuration Database Report
- Walkaway Code Database Report
- ACD-DN Database Report
- Graphic Format Database Report
- Tabular Format Database Report
- List Definition Database Report
- Spectrum Definition Database Report

System reports can be printed or viewed on your screen. You request these reports through the System Reports screen.

Note: Several system reports allow you to specify the range of the report. Examples are the Supervisor Database Report, Agent Database Report, and ACD Group Database Report.



1. From the display window, select **Reports / System Reports**.

👰 System Reports	_ 🗆 X
<u>File E</u> dit <u>H</u> elp	
<u>8 % ne + ?</u>	
<u>R</u> eport Type	
Configuration Report	-
Configuration Report	
Graphic Format Database Report	
List Definition Database Report	
Logical Group Database Report	_
Period Definition Database Report	
Privilege Level Database Report	_
Schedule Definition Database Report	<u> </u>

- 2. Identify the report.
- a. From the System Reports screen, click on the drop down box arrow. Select your report from the list of options.
- b. If prompted for additional information, select from your list of options.
- c. Select report destination.

3 Print the report.

- a. Select the File / Print option (or press Print button on toolbar).
- 4. Exit to CC MIS Main menu.

Customizing Reports

You can create personal (custom) tabular or graphic formats for a report. Use the steps below to access the format screens.

Tabular formats

The tabular report formats screen is used to define personal or public tabular formats. Formats defined on this screen can be read into the Report Parameter Definition screen. The tabular report formats screen is shown below.

Tabular Format <u>F</u> ile <u>E</u> dit <u>H</u> elp	Definition
D FRX Ø	
Format <u>T</u> itle	ACD DN Calls Abandoned Report
Statistics <u>G</u> roup	ACD-DN Statistics
<u>S</u> elected Columns	2222222222 ###### ###### ##### ##### ##### ACD-DN base CALLS CALLS NUM NUM Lime OFFRD ANSWD ABD ABD Unit OFFRD RAN RAN RAN
	+010+020+030+040+050+(
Edit Columns	Image: Second state Image: Second state Imag
Edit Headings	Average ACD talk time Average abandoning delay Average answering delay Average answering delay Average answering delay Average answering delay
Insert	



CC MIS

Reports

Field descriptions

Format Title - Specify the title for the format. The name entered in this field will appear in other menus and serves as a default report title unless a report title is specified in a report parameter definition. Accepts up to 55 characters.

Statistics Group - Specify the statistical group: Destination ACD-GRP, Overflow, Agent, LOB Code, ACD-DN, or Walkaway statistics.

Custom Headings - Specify desired custom heading. Selection can be made by selecting standard headings listed in the lower list portion of the screen, then modifying as desired. The text entered in this field(s) will appear on the report as headings above the data.

Column Selections - Specify desired statistics. Press F3 and use the arrow keys to scroll menu.



Graphic report format screen

Graphic formats

The graphic report formats screen is used to define personal or public graphic formats. Formats defined and saved from this screen can be read into the Report Parameter Definition screen. The graphic report formats screen is shown below.

Graph <u>T</u>	[itle Walkaways				
Statistics <u>G</u> ro Chart Type	oup Walkaway Statistics	•	Date and Time	Walkaways	Pag
	日本国	≥	20- 18-		
-Axis Labels			talks □ 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		
Data Axis Key Axis	Num of Walks Hours		an of w rm of w		
-Kevs			Ž↔ -		
Axis	Destination ACD-GRP	•	مل ال		
Legend	Walkaway Code	_			
Selected Data SSS 123 Numb SSS () Avera	a Elements per of Walkaways age Walk Time		<u>A</u> vailable Data	i Elements	
Total	Walkaway Duration nd of list				

Field descriptions

Graph Title - Specify the title for the graph.

Statistics Group - Specify the statistical group: Destination ACD-GRP, Overflow, Agent, LOB Code, ACD-DN, or Walkaway statistics. Click on the down arrow and select the statistics group from the menu.

Type of Chart - Specify the chart type for the graphic format. The screen is redrawn with fields applicable to the type of chart selected (as shown in the figure above and six types shown below).



After the type of chart is selected and the screen is redrawn, the graphic image of the chart is displayed on the screen.

Axis Labels - Specify the data and key axis labels for the chart.

Keys - Specify the axis and legend keys for the chart.

Data Elements:

Available Data Elements - This is a list of available statistics that can be added to the graph.

Selected Data Elements - This is a list of statistics that have been added to the graph.

Note: To select an available data element and have it appear on the graph and in the selected list, you can double click the left mouse button on the desired data element or drag-and-drop the element from the Available to the Selected column.



Printing custom reports

You can print personal (custom) tabular or graphic formats for a report. Use the steps below to generate the report.

steps Generating custom reports

From the Main window:

- 1. Select **Reports / Parameters.**
- 2. The system displays the Report Parameter Definition screen.
- 3. Select your custom format. Complete other fields settings on the definition screen.
- 4. To print, select Report / Generate.
- To save as a new personal report, select File / Save As, then select New Personal in the dialog box.

Spectrums

CC MIS

Reports

The Spectrum Definition screen allows you to define categories into which incoming calls are placed based on the delay experienced or the duration of the call. Up to ten categories can be defined for each of the three available spectrums.

Spectrums are used in the following standard reports:

- Delay Before Answering
- Delay Before Abandoning
- Call Duration

The individual categories are also available for custom reports in ACD Group Statistics.

The Spectrum Definition window is shown in the figure below.

劇 Spectru	m Defir	nitions	_ 🗆 ×	C	
<u>F</u> ile <u>E</u> dit	<u>H</u> elp				
	(B 6	1 in 8]		
<u>S</u> pec	trum Ty	pe			
Answering Delay					
<u>N</u> um!	per of Ca	atetories	9 💌		
	Fro <u>m</u>	_	To		
1	0		9		
2	10	÷	19		
3	20	- -	29		
4	30	- -	39		
5	40	- -	59		
6	60	÷	119		
7	120	÷	179		
8	180	- -	239		
9	240	* *	>>>		



The following tables provide a listing the standard report formats.

Table 1: Standard report formats

Standard Format	Explanation		
ACD Call Duration	Identifies the duration of a call by measuring from when the call is answered by the agent until the call is released by the agent.		
ACD-DN Calls Abandoned	Identifies the total number of calls abandoned per ACD-DN and the total abandon delay.		
ACD-DN Calls Answered	Identifies the total number of calls answered per ACD-DN and the total answer delay.		
ACD Group by Agent Performance	Identifies agent activities for each group. This report can tell if there is a problem with a particular agent or if all agents are experiencing the same difficulties.		
ACD Group by Agent Transfer	Identifies agent transfer activities for each group.		
ACD Group by LOB Code	Identifies the number and duration of calls by LOB code for each group.		
ACD Group by Walkaway Code	Identifies the walkaway codes associated with a specific ACD group.		
ACD Group Overflow	For each source and destination ACD group pair, indicates the number of calls that either queue overflowed (for example, due to exceeding maximum wait or queue size) or time overflowed from the source to the destination.		
ACD Group Transfer-In	Identifies the number of calls that were transferred in to a group.		
ACD Group Transfer-Out	Identifies the number of calls that were transferred out of a group.		
Agent Summary	Provides detail regarding the types of calls received/ made and the amount of time spent for each agent.		
Agent by ACD Group Performance	Identifies the activities of all agents sorted by Agent ID trough ACD group.		
Agent by LOB Code	Identifies the activities of all agents sorted by LOB codes.		
Agent by Subgroup Performance	Identifies the performance of each agent under different sub- groups.		
Delay Before Abandoning	Identifies how many calls were abandoned and how long the callers waited before they hung up.		
Delay Before Answering	Provides information about the service callers receive.		



Table 1: Standard report formats

Standard Format	Explanation	
LOB Code by ACD Group	Identifies call processing time for each LOB code. Breaks down information to show which ACD group received the calls asso- ciated with the LOB code.	
LOB Code by Agent	Identifies call processing time for each LOB code. Breaks down information to show the LOB codes associated with specific agents.	
Summarized ACD-DN Call Analysis	Identifies the ACD-DNs and summarizes the associated call activity.	
Summarized ACD Group Call Analysis	Provides an overall analysis of an ACD group. Shows how calls were handled and maximum and average delays and call durations.	
Summarized ACD Group Per- formance	Identifies groups in the system and summarizes group load per- formance. It shows the actual number of calls each group answered and the average time it took to handle each call.	
Summarized ACD Group Trans- fer	Identifies the groups and summarizes transfer information for the groups.	
Subgroup by Agent Performance	Provides supervisors with performance information for their agents.	
Walkaway Code by ACD Group	Identifies the reason for and the total time spent in walkaway state by an agent in a specific ACD group.	
Walkaway Code by Agent ID	Identifies the reason for and the total time spent in walkaway state by an agent.	

Table 2: Standard graphical reports

Standard Format	Explanation
ACD Group Calls Abandoned Graphic	For each ACD Group, shows how many calls were abandoned before and after receiving a recorded announcement.
ACD Group Calls Answered Delay Graphic	For each ACD group, shows how many calls were answered before and after the delay objective.ACD Group Calls Answered Delay Graphic
ACD-DN Calls Abandoned Graphic	For each ACD-DN, shows how many calls were abandoned before and after receiving a recorded announcement.
ACD-DN Calls Answered Delay Graphic	For each ACD-DN, shows how many calls were answered before and after the delay objective.


Configuration Control

Introduction

Configuration control allows you to view and adjust parameters inside the ACD switch that relate to operating functions such as traffic control and staffing. CC MIS provides two modes of security that allows supervisors to have control over access to Configuration Control screens and system administration: Privilege Level Definition and Scope Definition.

Networked CC MIS

When the Networking feature is enabled, the Configuration Control screens contain a Node field and the Insert dialogs allow for Node selection. The Node field is used to identify the node of the position or group. The node selection function allows you to select a node, then insert positions or groups listed under the node selected.

Note: The APR feature is not available for Network Access Partitions. Therefore Configuration Control screens that display the Node field will not display the APR fields.

Accessing configuration control functions

The CC MIS configuration control (load management) functions are accessed from the Config pulldown menu. The Config menu is selected on the CC MIS Main window.

steps Accessing the Config menu



- 1. From the CC MIS Main window, select Config.
- 2. The Config pulldown menu is displayed.

Select the desired function from the menu.



Ad hoc Load Management screens

Ad hoc Load Management screens are screens you enter to make and execute immediate Load Management changes. The screens for Positions, Groups, ACD-DNs, and Networking all follow the same format and have the same available commands.

Screen functionality

The following terms are used when describing the Configuration Control screens:

Cell - A cell is a row and column location in the data portion of the screen.

Key field or column - The left-most column of the data portion of the screen is referred to as the key field or key column.

Key - The data (or type of data) that is in the left-most cell of any row.

Null cell - The bottom cell that serves as a place holder to allow new cells to be inserted. No data can be associated with this cell.

Configuration Control screens are initially displayed with a cursor positioned in the upper left corner cell of the data portion of the screen. There are five types of keys: ACD Groups, Positions, ACD-DNs, Agent IDs, and ACD Group Pairs.

Insert Dialog Box

The Insert Dialog Box is displayed by selecting the Insert option from the Edit menu or by pressing the Insert key on your keyboard. Keys and their associated data are inserted into the screen by means of the Insert Dialog Box. The contents of the Insert Dialog is dependent on the type of screen currently displayed. The Insert Dialog Box is shown below.

nsert Position(s)			×
Positions		Insert	
1100 1102 1103 1104 1105 1106 1107 1108 1109 1110 1111 1112	Move ->	1101	
1113 1114 1115 v Position Lists		Insert	
V	OK Cancel		

Insert dialog box

Changing agent position assignments

The Config / Positions option allows you to view or change the supervisor and ACD group assignments of specified agent-positions. The changes made in this option alter Table KSETFEAT.

Note: Asterisks (***) appearing in a field of a Configuration Control screen indicates that the area can only be changed on the DMS-ACD switch.

Change Positions Assignments screen is shown below.

	ontrol - Pos	sitions		_ 🗆
<u>File E</u> dit <u>P</u> refere	nces <u>V</u> iev	v <u>H</u> elp		
å₽ X 🖻 ?				
This is a read only k	ey field; key	/ = Position ID. If any Position II	Ds or lists	of IDs are defined,
they are selectable t	from the me	nu accessed via the "Insert" ke	ey or unde	er the main "Edit" menu.
,				
			—	
Position	Node	Subgroup		—Current Agent——— Name
Position giz1	Node giz1	Subgroup		Current Agent Name
Position giz1 giz1-5310	Node giz1 giz1	Subgroup giz1-1111 - 214-997-5161		Current Agent Name
Position giz1 giz1-5310 giz1-5312	Node giz1 giz1 giz1	Subgroup giz1-1111 - 214-997-5161 giz1-1111 - 214-997-5161		Current Agent Name
Position giz1 giz1-5310 giz1-5312 giz1-5314	Node giz1 giz1 giz1 giz1 giz1	Subgroup giz1-1111 - 214-997-5161 giz1-1111 - 214-997-5161 giz1-1112 - 214-997-5161	ID	Current Agent Name
Position giz1 giz1-5310 giz1-5312 giz1-5314 giz1-5316	Node giz1 giz1 giz1 giz1 giz1	Subgroup giz1-1111 - 214-997-5161 giz1-1111 - 214-997-5161 giz1-1112 - 214-997-5161 giz1-2222 - 214-997-5261	ID	Current Agent Name

Show Changes

The default setting for this box is checked. This setting (indicated by an checkmark) allows the user to see the changes made to any of the fields on the screen. When the check indication is removed, the screen displays the original data on the screen. (Changes made are still available even though they are not displayed on the screen.) Click on the box (check it) to display the changes.

Position Assignments screen fields

Position- Identifies an existing agent position ID. Use the **Edit/Insert** option to insert positions. (Positions are up to 4 digits in length.)

Node - Identifies the node on which the group resides in the network. This field is display only when the Networking feature is enabled.

ACD Group - Identifies the new ACD group to which the agent is to be assigned. Valid entries are the primary DN of an ACD group or ACD group name.

Change position assignment screen



Subgroup - Identifies the subgroup identified by supervisor ID to which the agent is to be assigned.

APR Subgroup - Identifies the Automatic Position Reassignment (APR) subgroup of the current agent. This field is displayed only if the current subgroup doesn't match the APR subgroup and APR is enabled in Customer Options. (This field is displayed only if the APR feature has been enabled and you are not logged into a Network Access Partition.)

Current Agent - Displays the agent's ID and Name currently logged in to that position. No input is accepted. Note: this field is displayed only if the Agent Identify option is enabled in the supervisor's associated Priviledge Level Definition.

Moving an active position to a new group

Moving an active position to a new group will result in:

- 1. The real-time statistics will immediately reflect the agent's activity in the new group.
- 2. Call completion counts and durations will be pegged against the new group. LOB statistics will be pegged to the group/supervisor. (This may result in an undefined lob code for the new group.)

Changing agent set parameters

Using the Config / Groups / Agent Set Parameters option you can change the multi-stage queue threshold settings, the number of display digits, the default line of business (LOB) code and the ACD group wrap-up time for agent sets. Changes made alter Table ACDGRP.

The Agent Set Parameters screen is shown below

Configuration Con File Edit Preference	t rol-Ag e ces <u>V</u> iev	e <mark>nt Set Parameters</mark> / <u>H</u> elp	3				_ 🗆	×
<u>₩</u> X 🖻 ?								
This is a read only key defined, they are selec	/ field; key ctable fron	r = ACD Group. If any in the menu accessed	ACD Gro via the "	ups or Insert'' l	lists of g key or u	groups are Inder the m	ain	•
ACD Group	Node	Multi-Stage Q Threshold Type	ueue Thr 1st	eshold: 2nd	s 3rd	Display Digits	Def a LOB	ult B
giz1	giz1							•
214-997-5161	giz1	WTIME	10	20	30	7	xolok	
214-997-5261	giz1	WTIME	10	20	30	7	statesk	
214-997-5361	giz1	WTIME	10	20	30	7	stolek	
214-997-5461	giz1	WTIME	10	20	30	7	stolek	Ţ
ا				2	:		۱	

Note: An asterisk (***) appearing in a field of a Configuration Control screen indicates that the field can only be changed at the DMS-ACD switch.

Agent Set Parameters screen fields

ACD Group -Identifies the name or DN number of an existing ACD group. Accepts as input (using Edit/Insert) any existing ACD group name, ACD group list name, or ACD group by its primary DN.

Node - Identifies the node on which the group resides in the network. This field is display only when the Networking feature is enabled.

Multi-Stage Queue Threshold Type - Identifies whether the Multi-Stage Queue ranges are associated with call queue size or call wait time. The valid values are QSize or WTime.

Multi-Stage Queue Threshold - Identifies three threshold values representing indicators on agent sets. Each threshold depends on the threshold type (either wait time or queue size).

Display Digits - This field specifies the number of digits displayed to agents in the ACD group. The range is 0-10 and is selectable from a menu.

Agent set parameter screen *Default LOB* - LOB means line-of-business code for the ACD group. A valid range is 0-999.

Wrap-Up Time - The group wrap-up time defines the default amount of time an agent is unavailable following the handling of an ACD call. (This is considered as agent not-ready time and is pegged as variable wrapup time and shown as VARWRAP on Agent Status screen). A valid range is 1-600 seconds.

Note: Agent wrap-up time will override the default wrapup time if it is datafilled in the ACD Table ACDLOGIN or ACDENLOG.

Changing queue size parameters of an ACD group

The Config / Groups / Queue Sizes option lets you view or change the queue size parameters of specified ACD groups. Changing fields in this option alters the Table ACDGRP.

Note: If you are running under BCS35 protocol, the MAXCQLMT and MAXVQLMT options must be datafilled on the switch in order to change queue sizes. If either of these are not datafilled, you will get the error message," Max Call Queue threshold value exceeds limit" or " Max Virtual Call Queue threshold value exceeds limit", respectively.

The Queue Sizes screen is shown below.

🔀 Configuration Co	ntrol - Que	eue Siz	es				_ 🗆 ×
<u>File E</u> dit <u>P</u> referen	ces <u>V</u> iev	v <u>H</u> elp					
& × ₽ ?							
This is a read only ke	y field; key	= ACD	Group. It	f any ACD Gi	roups or lists o	of groups are	
defined, they are sele	ectable fron	n the me	nu acce	ssed via the	"Insert" key o	r under the main	ו 🗖
		<u> </u>	117-3	-Maximum—		Priority	
ACD Group	Node	Calls	Time	Overflow	Transfer	Timer	
giz2	giz2						-
613-722-6000	giz2	2	0	0	0	0	
613-722-6001	giz2	50	0	0	42	0	
613-722-6002	giz2	2	0	0	0	0	
613-722-6003	giz2	50	0	0	42	0	_

Note: An asterisk (***) appearing in a field of a Configuration Control screen indicates that the field can be changed only at the DMS-ACD switch.

Queue Size screen fields

ACD Group - Identifies the name or DN number of an existing ACD group. Accepts as input any existing ACD group name, or ACD Group list name. Primary ACD-DNs may also be entered.

Node - Identifies the node on which the group resides in the network. This field is display only when the Networking feature is enabled.

Maximum Calls - Identifies the maximum number of calls that can be queued in this ACD group's incoming call queue at any one time. Accepts as input any number from 0 to 511 inclusive. A zero value means that this ACD group does not have call queuing, but will route to the table specified in either the Threshold Route or Overflow Targets fields in the Overflow Targets screen.

Queue size screen *Maximum Wait Time* - Identifies the maximum number of seconds that a call can be held in the incoming call queue before being answered by an agent. Accepts as input any number from 0 to 1800 seconds.

Maximum Incoming Overflow - Identifies the maximum number of logical calls that can be queued. Accepts as input any number from 0 to 511 inclusive.

Maximum Transfer - Identifies the maximum number of calls that can be transferred to agents in this ACD group. Accepts as input any number from 0 to 42 inclusive.

Note: The Call Transfer Queue Size is dependent on the maximum call queue size for your group. Normally, the range is 0 to 42, but if the maximum call queue size is set to less than 42, you cannot exceed that value.

Priority Promotion Timer - Identifies the maximum amount of time an unanswered call can remain in a particular priority queue. When the call exceeds this timer value, then it is promoted to the next higher priority queue. Accepts as input any number from 0 to 255 inclusive. A zero value means that priority promotion time out does not apply.



Changing time overflow parameters of an ACD group

The Config / Groups / Time Overflow option allows you view or change the time overflow parameters of specified ACD groups. This option alters the Table ACDGRP.

The Time Overflow Parameters screen is shown below.

Configuration Con File Edit Preference	trol - Tin :es ⊻iev	n e Overflo v <u>H</u> elp	w Parameters	3		-	
This is a read only key defined, they are selec	/field; key ctable fror	/ = ACD Gro n the menu	oup. If any ACD accessed via th	Groups or lists ne "Insert" key	of group or unde	os are r the main	•
ACD Group	Node	Priority 0 Only	Immediate Timer	├───Time De Threshold	lay Time	Service	
giz1	giz1						
214-997-5161	giz1	No	Yes	20	20	0	IE
214-997-5261	giz1	No	Yes	20	20	0	0
214-997-5361	giz1	No	Yes	20	xolook	0	yok
214-997-5461	giz1	No	Yes	20	slololok	0	
<u>ا</u>							

Note: An asterisk (***) appearing in a field of a Configuration Control screen indicates that the field can be changed only at the DMS-ACD switch.

Time Overflow screen fields

The Time Overflow screen contains the following fields:

ACD Group - Identifies the name or DN number of an existing ACD group. Accepts as input any existing ACD group name, or ACD group list name. Primary ACD-DNs can be used.

Node - Identifies the node on which the group resides in the network. This field is display only when the Networking feature is enabled.

Priority 0 Only - Identifies that only priority 0 calls have time delay overflow. Accepts as input either yes or no. If no, then all calls have time delay overflow.

Immediate Timer - Identifies that timing for time delay overflow starts as soon as calls are received. Accepts as input either yes or no.

Time overflow parameters screen *Time Delay Threshold*- Identifies the time delay overflow threshold that is applied to either all calls or priority 0 calls only. Accepts as input 0 to 1800 inclusive.

Service Order - Identifies the order in which the call queues are serviced. Accepts as values:

- 0 = Outflow calls, then inflow calls, then calls queued within priority
- 1 = Outflow calls, then priority 0 calls, then inflow calls, then other calls queued within priority
- 2 = Oldest call of either the physical or logical queue

Time Delay Time - Identifies the amount of time in seconds a time delay overflowed call remains in queue before being rerouted to the Time Delay Threshold Route. Accepts as input 0 to 1800.

Threshold Route - Identifies the route used for rerouting time delay overflow calls. Accepts as input Table OFRT or IBNRTE and 0 to 1023.



Changing the overflow targets for an ACD group

The Config / Groups / Overflow Targets option allows you view or change the overflow targets of specified ACD groups. The changes made in this option alters Table ACDGRP.

The Overflow Targets screen is shown below.

Configuration Configuration File Edit Preference	ntrol - Ove ces ⊻iev	e rflow Targets v <u>H</u> elp						
This is a read only ke	y field; key	/ = ACD Group. If	any ACD Groups of	or lists of groups ar	e defined, they are	e selectable from 🔄		
the menu accessed via the "Insert" key or under the main "Edit" menu. Selected rows can be "Deleted" similarly.								
405.0			T	— 10	-	Threshold		
ACD Group	Node laiz2	Target I	Target 2	Target 3	Target 4	Koute		
613-722-6000	gize niz2		jalalalalalalalalalalalalalala	, adalalalalalalalalalalalalalalala	tolololololololololololololololok			
613-722-6001	gize niz2	*******	zalalalalalalalalalalalalalala	kalalalalalalalalalalalalalala		OFBT 702		
613-722-6002	gizz giz2	kolalalalalalalalalalalalalalalalala	kolololololololololololololololok	kololololololololololololololok	kololololololololololololololok	OFBT 703		
613-722-6003	aiz2	koladokoladokoladokok	jalakokolakokokokokokokokokok	Jaiolololaiolololaiolololai	jololololololololololololololololol	OFRT 704		
giz1	giz1							
214-997-5161	qiz1	214-997-5261	214-997-5361			OFRT 1006		
214-997-5261	giz1	214-997-5361	214-997-5161			OFRT 1006		
214-997-5361	giz1	100000000000000000000000000000000000000	kelelelelelelelelelelelelelelelelele	kalalalalalalalalalalalalalala	Actololololololololololololololololololol	OFRT 1006		
214-997-5461	giz1	*****	kalalalalalalalalalalalalalalalalalala	islolololololololololololololololok	kololololololololololololololololok	OFRT 1006 🚽		
1						Þ		

Overflow targets screen

Overflow Targets screen fields

ACD Group - Identifies the name or DN number of an existing ACD group. Accepts as input any existing ACD group name, or ACD group list name. Primary ACD-DNs can be used.

Node - Identifies the node on which the group resides in the network. This field is display only when the Networking feature is enabled.

Overflow Targets - Identifies up to four targets to enhance overflow. Accepts the primary DN of an ACD group or a group name as input.

Threshold Route - Identifies the route used for rerouting time delay overflow calls.

Changing recorded announcements parameters - ACD group

The Config / Groups / Recorded Announcements option allows you view or change parameters for the recorded announcements (RAN) of specified ACD groups. The changes made in this option alters the Tables ACDGRP and AUDIO.

Recorded Announcements screen is shown below.

Configuration Cor	ntrol - Rea	corded Anno / Help	uncemer	its		-	Π×
This is a read only key field; key = ACD Group. If any ACD Groups or lists of groups are defined, they are selectable from the menu accessed via the "Insert" key or under the main "Edit" menu. Selected rows can							* *
			Audio	Forced	Forced	Provide	
ACD Group	Node	Threshold	Group	Incoming	Overflow	Announcement	
giz1	giz1						
214-997-5161	giz1	6	10	hohok	xolok	No	
214-997-5261	giz1	6	10	holok	xolok	No	
214-997-5361	giz1	6	10	skolok	stolek	No	
214-997-5461	giz1	6	10	hokok:	xolak	No	4
							Þ

Recorded announcements screen

Recorded Announcements screen fields

ACD Group - Identifies the name or DN number of an existing ACD group. Accepts as input any existing ACD group name or ACD group list name using the Edit / Insert option. Primary ACD-DNs can be used.

Node - Identifies the node on which the group resides in the network. This field is display only when the Networking feature is enabled.

Threshold - Identifies how long the incoming call waits in queue before receiving a recorded announcement. If this value is 0, then the caller receives an announcement immediately upon entering the incoming call queue for this ACD Group and does not receive a ring (RINGING field in table ACD Group = No). Accepts as input 0, 6-60.

Audio Group - Identifies the audio group, which in turn identifies the choices (MUSIC, SILENCE, ANN, and REPEAT), and the number of times these recorded announcement choices should play to queued calls in this ACD group. If the existing value in the Audio Group field is 0, then the DMS-ACD does not have a defined audio group for the related ACD group. Accepts as input 1-512.

Forced Incoming - Identifies the audio group to be used to give forced incoming announcements to new incoming ACD calls. Accepts as input: 1 - 512.



Forced Overflow - Identifies the audio group to be used to give forced overflow announcements for deflected ACD calls. Accepts as input 1-512.

Provide Announcements - Specifies if the ACD group should provide forced incoming announcements and delay announcements for calls overflowing into this group. Indicate Yes or No. (This specifies which announcement the caller will hear: either those from the original group called or from the group to which the caller is overflowed.)

Changing special routing parameters for an ACD group

The Config / Groups / Special Routing option allows you view or change the night service and control interflow parameters of specified ACD groups. The changes made in this option alters Table ACDGRP. ACD activates the night service feature when all agents in an ACD group have logged off their set. All calls residing in the incoming call queue at this time remain in queue (unless call queue clearing ACD feature is active) until the caller disconnects, but no new incoming calls are received by this ACD group. The supervisor can activate the night service and controlled interflow features.

The Special Routing screen is shown below.

Eile Edit Preference: 화× ☞ ?	; <u>V</u> iew <u>H</u> elp						
9 × 🗗 ?							
This is a read only key fi	eld: kev = ACD Gro	oup. If any ACD	Groups or lists of	aroups are def	ined, they are sel	ectable from the	2
menu accessed via the '	"Insert" key or unde	er the main "Edi	it" menu. Selecter	d rows can be "	'Deleted'' similarl	ly.	
	Night Convice	Mircht Convice	Controlled	Do Enguiouo			
ACD Group	Night Service Boute	Night Service	Lontrolled Interflow Boute	Re-Eriqueue	Re-Enqueue Boute	Audio Boute	
romotions	IOEBT 7	4	www.course	www.		www.	
Pener ations		4	kolekolekolekolekolek	skolak		łokok	
Reservations		4	<u> </u>				

Special routing screen

Special Routing option screen fields

ACD Group - Identifies the name of an existing ACD group. Accepts as input any existing ACD group name or ACD group list name using the Edit / Insert option. Primary ACD-DNs can be used.

Node - Identifies the node on which the group resides in the network. This field is display only when the Networking feature is enabled.

Night Service Route - Identifies a table name and an index number to which this ACD group routes night service calls. Accepts as input either OFRT or IBNRTE and an existing index number.

Night Service Group - Identifies the Audio Group is used to provide a night service announcement to callers prior to rerouting the call to the night service route. Accepts as input 1-512.

Controlled Interflow Route - Identifies the route the calls will take when the supervisor has put the group into controlled interflow mode. Values for this field are tables OFRT and IBNRTE and index ranges 0-1023.



Re-Enqueue Time - The maximum amount of time in seconds a re-enqueued call remains queued before being re-routed to the re-enqueue route (Range: 0-1800).

Re-Enqueue Route - This is the re-enqueue route that consists of table (Values: "OFRT", "IBNRTE") and index (Range: 0 - 1023).

Re-Enqueue Audio Table - Audio group used to provide re-enqueue announcement to callers prior to re-routing the call to the re-enqueue route (Range: 1 - 512).

Changing network parameters for an ACD group

The Config / Groups / Network Parameters option allows you change various parameters that are used in networking ACD groups (NACD) together. The changes made in this option alters Table NACDGRP.

The Network parameters screen is shown below.

File Edit Preferer	ntrol - Ne nces Viev	t work F v Hel	P <mark>arame</mark> p	eters				_ 🗆 🗅
~			•					
This is a read only ki selectable from the r	ey field; key nenu acces	/ = ACD sed via	Group. A the "In:	lf any A(sert'' kev	CD Groups or or under the r	lists of groups ar nain "Edit" menu	e defined, tł . Selected i	neyare 🛓 rowscan 🖡
1								<u></u>
		1		н.		21 W.	1.8	
ACD Group	Node	-Thre Call	sholds- Wait	<mark>∦</mark> Pref	Weighting f Most Idle	actors ——— Idle Agents	- Service Bate	Conside Source
ACD Group	Node giz1	⊢Thre Call	sholds- Wait	 Pref	Weighting f Most Idle	Factors Idle Agents	┥ Service Rate	Conside Source
ACD Group giz1 214-997-5161	Node giz1 giz1	⊢Thre Call	sholds- Wait	Pref	Weighting f Most Idle	actors Idle Agents	- Service Rate	Conside Source
ACD Group giz1 214-997-5161 214-997-5261	Node giz1 giz1 giz1	-Thre Call	sholds- Wait	Pref	Weighting F Most Idle	actors Idle Agents	H Service Rate	Conside Source
ACD Group giz1 214-997-5161 214-997-5261 214-997-5361	Node giz1 giz1 giz1 giz1	HThre Call	sholds - Wait	Pref	Weighting Most Idle مسر سر 4	actors Idle Agents	Service Rate	Conside Source
ACD Group giz1 214-997-5161 214-997-5261 214-997-5361 214-997-5461	Node giz1 giz1 giz1 giz1 giz1	HThre Call	sholds- Wait	Pref	Weighting Most Idle	actors Idle Agents	Service Rate	Conside Source
ACD Group giz1 214-997-5161 214-997-5261 214-997-5361 214-997-5461	Node giz1 giz1 giz1 giz1 giz1	HThre Call	sholds- Wait	Pref	Weighting f Most Idle	actors Idle Agents 3 3	Service Rate	Conside Source

Note: An asterisk (*) appearing in a field of a Configuration Control screen indicates that the field can be changed only at the DMS-ACD switch.

Network Parameters option screen fields

ACD Group - This field identifies the name or number of the ACD Group. Primary ACD-DNs can be displayed in this field.

Node - Identifies the node on which the group resides in the network. This field is display only when the Networking feature is enabled.

Call Threshold - This field can change the queue threshold with a range of 0-511.

Wait Threshold - This field can change the maximum wait threshold with a range of 0-1800.

Preference Weighting Factor - This field shows the group preference weight factor with a range of 0-32767.

Most Idle Agent - This is the factor used in calculating the Resource Index for the group with a range of 0-600.

Network parameters screen



Num Idle Agent - This is the factor used in calculating the Resource Index for the group with a range of 0-255.

Service Rate - This is the average service rate (call handling time) for the group with a range of 0-600.

Consider Source - This field specifies whether the source group should be considered when determining the best target group for time overflow calls. The values are Yes or No.

Changing ACD-DN assignments and priorities

The Config / ACD-DNs option allows you change trunk priorities for specified ACD-DNs, the line priorities of primary DNs, the group assignments of supplementary DNs and the name of the ACD-DN. The changes made in this option alters the Tables DNROUTE and DNATTRS.

The Change ACD-DNs Assignments and Priorities screen is shown below.

하위X (말) This is a read only key field menu accessed via the "In	d; key = A(isert" key i	CD-DN. If any AC or under the main	D-DNs or lis "Edit" men	sts of DNs u. Selecter	are defined, they a d rows can be "De	are selectable from the 🔎 eleted'' similarly.
This is a read only key field menu accessed via the "In	d; key = A(isert'' key i	CD-DN. If any AC or under the main	D-DNs or lis "Edit" men	sts of DNs u. Selecte	are defined, they a d rows can be "De	are selectable from the Eleted" similarly.
-						
			Trunk	Line		
ACD-DN N	lode	DN Type	Priority	Priority	ACD Group	Name
giz1 giz	z1					
214-997-5161 gia	z1 Prir	nary	0	0	214-997-5161	
214-997-5261 gi	z1 Prir	nary	0	0	214-997-5261	
214-997-5361 gi	z1 Prir	nary	0	0	214-997-5361	AGT21 SDN
214-997-5461 gi	z1 Prir	nary	0	0	214-997-5461	

ACD-DN assignments and priorities screen

ACD-DNs screen fields

ACD-DN - Identifies the existing ACD-DN number. Accepts as input any existing ACD-DN number or ACD-DN list name using the Edit / Insert option.

Node - Identifies the node on which the group resides in the network. This field is display only when the Networking feature is enabled.

DN Type - Identifies the DN as a primary or supplementary DN. Each ACD group receives calls from up to 17 ACD-DNs. Within each ACD group there is one primary and up to 16 supplementary ACD-DNs. This field does not accept input.

Trunk Priority - Identifies the priority for ACD calls coming in over trunks. Accepts as input 0 to 3 inclusive, where 0 is the highest priority and 3 is the lowest priority.

Line Priority - Identifies the priority for ACD calls coming in over lines or for ACD calls originated from within the same switch. Accepts as input 0 to 3 inclusive, where 0 is the highest priority and 3 is the lowest priority. The field is left blank and is not accessible if the DN type is Supplementary.



ACD Group - Identifies the name or number of an existing ACD group that processes calls for this ACD DN. Accepts as input any existing ACD group name or ACD Primary DN.

Name - Identifies the name of the ACD-DN. Accepts input as 15 character or less. This name is not used by CC MIS.



Changing network targets

The Config / Networking option allows you set the Preference Weight Factor for networked ACD groups. (You can also set the Resource Index for networked groups on non-DMS switches.) The changes made in this option alters Tables NACDGRP and REMNACD.

The Network Targets screen is shown below.

🔀 Configuration Control - Network Target	s		
<u>F</u> ile <u>E</u> dit <u>P</u> references <u>V</u> iew <u>H</u> elp			
<u>69 × 8 9</u>			
This is a read only key field; key = ACD Group selectable from the menu accessed via the "Ir	Pair. If an <u>:</u> isert'' key (/ ACD Group Pairs are or under the main "Edit	e defined, they are 🔺 " menu. Selected 💌
Source/Destination ACD Group Pair	Node	Preference Weighting Factor	Resource Index Value
214-997-5361 -> 214-997-5461	giz1	3	0
			•

Network targets screen

Network Targets option screen fields

Source/Destination ACD Group Pair - This field identifies the destination ACD groups that are network targets of the source ACD group. There can be a total of 48 destination groups per source ACD group.

Node - Identifies the node on which the group resides in the network. This field is display only when the Networking feature is enabled.

Preference Weighting Factor - This field allows you to change the Preference Weight Factor for the source / destination ACD group pair. The range of this field is 0-32767.

Resource Index Value - This is the current Resource Index for the destination ACD group. (This is a display only field.)



Using Configuration Control efficiently

Configuration Control has several features that allow you to use configuration control efficiently. These features are:

- defining change orders rather than ad hoc requests
- defining lists
- viewing the transaction log

You define change orders to:

- schedule the changes
- initiate several changes on one schedule
- define changes you use frequently

When you define a change order, you group a set of Configuration Control changes together and reference them by the change order name. You have the option to either execute these change orders immediately or schedule the changes for execution at either a later date and time or at recurring intervals.

Note: CC MIS allows you to save multiple change orders with the same name. If you are modifying an existing change order, use the Overwrite an existing change order command to prevent the system from saving different change orders with the same name.

The Change Orders screen is shown below.

🔀 Configuration Cor	ntrol - Cha	ange Orders					
<u>F</u> ile <u>E</u> dit <u>P</u> references <u>V</u> iew <u>L</u> anguage <u>H</u> elp							
	En 🔄	glish 🔻 🦹					
Change Order Name		Co	onfiguration Area				
			ositions 🗸				
This is a read only ke	v field: kev	/ = Position ID. If any Posit	ion IDs or lists of IDs are defined, they are				
selectable from the menu accessed via the "Insert" key or under the main "Edit" menu. Selected rows							
Position	Node	Subaroup	ID Name				
giz1	giz1	Cabgroup					
	giz1	giz1-1111 - 214-997-5161					
giz1-5312	giz1	giz1-1111 - 214-997-5161					
giz1-5314	giz1	giz1-1112 - 214-997-5161					
giz1-5316	giz1	giz1-2222 - 214-997-5261					
•							

Use the View / Transaction Log and View / Execution Queue options to monitor the status of your changes.

Note: You must have System Administrator abilities (access to Admin) to schedule the change order.

Change orders screen



Provide a change order name and in the Configuration Area, select the desired area from the pulldown menu where changes are to be made.

Configuration Control - Change Orders □ X Eile Edit Preferences View Help □ X										
Change Order Name			Configuration Area							
			Special Routing							
	Positions									
This is a read only key field; key = ACD Group. If any Al menu accessed via the "Insert" key or under the main "			Queue Sizes	roups are defined, they are selectable from the 🔄 rows can be "Deleted" similarly						
			Time Overflow	<u> </u>						
			Overflow Targets							
			Announcements							
ACD Group	Night Service Route	Night Servio Group	Special Routing	Re-Enqueue Time	Re-Enqueue Route	Re-Enqueue Audio Route				
Reservations	OFR3 7	4	ACD-DNs	Asholak	ala ka	skolok				
Inquiries	OFR4 7	4	Network Targets	Acalonica in the second se	idalalalalalalalalal	slotok				
Promotions	OFRT 7	4	kalaialalalalalalala	skolok	skoladadadadadada	Actor				
						Þ				

Use the Edit / Insert command to view the desired values.

After the insert action has been completed, you can select the field to be modified and enter the new value.

Configuration Control - Change Orders Image: Configuration Control - Change Orders File Edit Preferences View Help Image:										
Change Order Name Configuration Area Special Routing										
Enter the night service route.										
	OFR4 6									
ACD Group	Night Service Route	Night Service Group	Controlled Interflow Route	Re-Enqueue Time	Re-Enqueue Route	Re-Enqueue Audio Route				
Inquiries Promotions	OFR4 6 OFRT 7	4	iddddaddddd	kolok		solok Halak				
							F			

After the desired modifications have been made, you can use the File menu commands, to Save, Schedule. or Execute your change order.



Viewing Configuration Control database tables

You can view the data tables through the Config/View or View menus.

Configuration Control database tables

Route List - Displays the route list for all ACD Groups in the current configuration. After the initial screen displays, you can use the page-up and page-down keys or scroll bar to scroll through the table.

Audio List - Displays the audio list for all ACD Groups in the current configuration. After the initial screen displays, you can use the page-up and page-down keys or scroll bar to scroll through the table.

OFRT Tables - Selection displays a sub-menu. Menu options are OFRT, OFR2, OFR3, and OFR4. Selecting one of these options displays all defined entries in that table. After the initial screen displays, you can use the page-up and page-down keys to scroll through the table.

IBNRTE Tables - Selection displays a sub-menu. Menu options are IBN-RTE, IBNRT2, IBNRT3, and IBNRT4. Selecting one of these options displays all defined entries in that table. After the initial screen displays, you can use the page-up and page-down keys to scroll through the table.

Audio Table - Displays all defined ACD entries in the Audio table. After the initial screen displays, you can use the page-up and page-down keys to scroll through the table.





A

access to report formats 9-17 ad-hoc reports 9-10 Admin menu 3-3, 4-3 Agent Detail window 5-6 agent status 5-1 Agent Status display 5-1 Agent Status display - field descriptions 5-2 Agent Status display - fonts 5-3 Agent Status display - setting the view 5-3 Alarm Definition screen 8-2 alarm definition templates 8-3 Alarms 8-1 С cascade menus 1-6 CC MIS icon 3-2 clicking 1-2 communication parameters 3-5 community (SNMP) 8-5 Config menu 4-2 create personal formats - reports 9-14, 9-17 creating a report definition 9-9 creating an alarm definition 8-4 custom tabular formats 9-14 D data export 9-11 data export report 9-3 data selections field 9-7 define a wallboard message 7-4 defining report parameters 9-4 determining report status 9-10 dialog box 1-6 display format - wallboard message 7-2 Displays menu 4-1 double-clicking the mouse 1-2 dragging 1-2 E elapsed time - agent status 5-3 Event Log 9-12 F focus 1-2 format title 9-14 formats, personal 9-14 G generating a data export report 9-11 generating a report 9-1



generating event log report 9-12 graphic formats 9-15 group by field 9-5 Η Help 1-4, 2-1 Help options 2-1 hold time - agent status 5-3 how to begin 1-1 Ι Index - Help 2-2 Κ keyboard accelerators 1-6 L LED message board xi, 7-1 logical groups field 9-5 login 3-1 logout 3-4 Μ Main window 3-3 Maximize button 1-4 menu bar 1-3 message text - wallboard message 7-2 **MIB 8-5** MIB transfer 8-5 Minimize button 1-4 monitoring supervisors 5-5 mouse 1-1 mouse cursor 1-2 moving the mouse 1-2 Ρ permanent detail window 5-4 personal graphic formats 9-15 personal report formats 9-2 pressing 1-2 printing a system report 9-12, 9-14, 9-17 Profile menu 4-2 public report formats 9-2 pulldown menus 1-5 R releasing the mouse 1-2 report formats 9-2 Report Parameter Definition screen 9-4 report status 9-10 report types 9-3 report, tabular formats 9-14 Reports - personal graphic 9-15



Reports menu 4-2, 9-1 S scope of reports 9-2 screen layout 1-3 scroll bars 1-4 selecting a field 1-3 selecting messages 7-5 sending a message 7-8 Sessions option 3-2 **SNMP 8-1 SNMP** Community setup 8-5 SNMP MIB Transfer window 8-5 standard graphical report format 9-20 standard report formats 9-2 Statistics group 9-14, 9-15, 9-16 status bar 8-2 steps for generating reports 9-1 system reports 9-12, 9-14, 9-17 Т tabular formats 9-14 template fields 8-3 templates 8-3 Terminal Setup window 3-5 time frame field 9-5 title bar 1-3 tool bar 8-2 totals only field 9-5, 9-7 transferring MIBs 8-5 U Using Help 2-3 V variables field - wallboard message 7-2 viewing a report (at desktop) 9-10 viewing another supervisor's report 9-11 W Wallboard Display Definition screen 7-5 Wallboard Message Definition screen 7-1 Wallboard Message Definition screen fields 7-2 Window - Help 2-2 Window menu 1-4 workspace 1-4

NORTEL NETWORKS CONFIDENTIAL:

The information contained in this document is the property of Nortel Networks. Except as specifically authorized in writing by Nortel Networks, the holder of this document shall keep the information contained herein confidential and shall protect same in whole or in part from disclosure and dissemination to third parties and use same for evaluation, operation, and maintenance purposes only.

Information is subject to change without notice. Nortel Networks reserves the right to make changes in design or components as progress in engineering and manufacturing may warrant.

DMS and Meridian are trademarks of Nortel Networks. HP, HP RuggedWriter, and HP LaserJet are trademarks of Hewlett-Packard Corporation. GRAFSMAN is a trademark of Soft-tek International. Reflection 4+ is a trademark of Walker, Ritchie & Quinn, Inc. System V/88 and Veritas are trademarks of Motorola Corporation. Windows, Windows 95 & 98, and Windows NT are trademarks of the Microsoft Corporation. Other trademarks, product names, and servicemarks contained in this guide are property of their respective companies or owners.

